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PART A:
GENERAL INFORMATION



NATIONAL MUSEUM
GENERAL INFORMATION

The National Museum* is a Declared Cultural
Institution with framework autonomy which
resorts under the Department of Arts and
Culture and is governed by a Council. The
Museum is a natural history, cultural history and
art museum which systematically and
selectively collects examples and information
relevant to these fields over the whole spectrum
of prehistory up to the present. It is its task tfo
document, preserve, conserve, restore, make

available, study and promote such items,
specimens, examples, collections and
information.

*Incorporating the satellites: First Raadsaal
Museum; Florisbad Research Station; Freshford
House Museum; Oliewenhuis Art Museum;
Wagon Museum; ArtBank

NATIONAL MUSEUM,
BLOEMFONTEIN

The Nafional Museum in
Bloemfontein was established in
1877 and initially its collections
and displays consisted mainly of
rarities from around the world.
Subsequently the Museum has
developed info an omnibus
institution with international

stature. Intensive research is
being done and significant study
collections have been
assembled in the fields of
acarology, arachnology,
botany, enfomology,
herpetology, mammalogy,
ornithology, palaeo-ecology,
palaeontology, anthropology,
archaeology, cultural history,
rock art and fine arts. Education

is a further core function of the
Museum and is embedded in
every Museum activity. Through
its displays and programmes the
Museum renders a public service
for its diverse audiences,
engaging them in enjoyable and
enlightening experiences and
enriching the learning
opportunities of all individuals.



OLIEWENHUIS ART MUSEUM
(Satellite of the
National Museum)

On 19 July 1985 the former State
President, Mr P.W. Botha, handed
Oliewenhuis to the National
Museum to be developed intfo an
art museum. Oliewenhuis was
erected in 1941 as residence of
the Governor-General of the Union
of South Africa. It was also used by
the State Presidents of the
Republic of South Africa as
residence when on official visits to
Bloemfontein. Later, however,

Oliewenhuis was no longer used
and it was thus made available to
the National Museum.

Several structural changes had to
be made to develop Oliewenhuis
info an art museum, which on
completion was officially opened
on 11 October 1989.

Oliewenhuis Art Museum collects
exclusively South African art and
its collection consists of paintings,
sculpture and graphic art. The
pride of the collection are the

Pierneef paintings, especially the

magnificent Rustenburg Kloof,
and the paintings of Bloemfontein
done by Thomas Baines in 1851,
only five years after the
establishment of the town. The
Art Museum obtains artworks
through donations and
acquisitions. The City Council of
Bloemfontein made important
donations, which were first housed
at the A.C. White Gallery, and Mrs
Dora Scoft donated the F.P. Scoft
Trust Collection. The latter
includes 24 artworks of the
Bloemfontein Group.

FLORISBAD QUATERNARY
RESEARCH STATION
(Satellite of the

National Museum)

Florisbad is an internationally
important fossil locality which
has produced an archaic
modern human skull in addition
to valuable archaeological and
palaeontological material. Itis a
key site for information not only
on the physical development of
modern humans, but also on

their environment and
subsistence behaviour. In
September 1912 an earthquake
opened up a new spring at the
Florisbad mineral spring, and
fossil bones and stone artefacts

were brought to the surface with

the water. Robert Broom

investigated the find and in 1913

published an arficle on the
material.

The discoveries prompted further

investigations in the 1920s and

1930s by Prof. T.F. Dreyer from the
Grey University College in
Bloemfontein. This culminated in
the discovery of the Florisbad
human craniumin 1932. Dr A.C.
Hoffman, Director of the
National Museum in
Bloemfontein, carried out further
work in 1952. In 1980 Florisbad
was bought by the South African
Government for research
purposes and was placed under
the administration of the
National Museum, Bloemfontein.




FRESHFORD HOUSE MUSEUM
(Satellite of the
National Museum)

Freshford is one of the few
houses of the upper middle
class of the Edwardian period
that still exists in Bloemfontein.
The house was designed and
built by the architect, John
Edwin Harrison. Born and frained
in England, Harrison immigrated
to South Africa in 1894,

Freshford House was completed
in 1897, i.e. during a transition

between the Late Victorian and
Edwardian periods. With its
asymmetrical facade,
unplastered red brick walls, bay
windows, veranda with carved
wood and galvanised iron roof
with cast-iron finishes, Freshford
House is a typical example of a
residence during this period in
Bloemfontein.

The house was acquired by the
National Museum in 1982,
restored fo its former glory and
was opened to the public in
1986.

FIRST RAADSAAL MUSEUM
(Satellite of the
National Museum)

The British Resident, Maj. H.D.
Warden, built this typical South

African pioneer's building in
1849. It was the first school
building north of the Orange
River. It served as a church until
1852 and it was used by the
Legislative Council of the
Orange River Sovereignty and,
from 1854, by the Orange Free
State Republic as Assembly Hall
and offices. When the Assembly
moved to larger premises in
1856, the building reverted to its
use as a school, which it
remained until 1877. The little
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building was put to a different
use once again when in that
year it housed the newly
established Natfional Museum. It
was vacated in 1915 when the
Museum moved to ifs present
premises, and it was proclaimed
a National Monument in 1936. In
1975 the wheel had turned full
circle when the old Raadsaal
was once again vacated and
fransferred to the National
Museum.



WAGON MUSEUM
(Satellite of the
National Museum)

The Wagon Museum is situated
on the same premises as the First
Raadsaal Museum. It houses a
collection of historical wagons
and carriages, such as a spring
wagon, Voortrekker ox wagon,
fransport wagon, stage coach,
mule wagon, spider and Cape

cart. In the exhibition area are
various panels depicting the
development of transport
through the ages and the
making of a wagon wheel. A
miniature diorama gives the
visitor an impression of a feam of
oxen in front of a Voortrekker ox
wagon. An exhibit of modes of
fransport used by black people
has recently been included in
the Museum.

ART BANK

The Art Bank of South Africais a
national programme of the
Department of Arts and Culture
as part of the Mzansi Golden
Economy (MGE) strategy
implementation and is hosted by
the Natfional Museum
Bloemfontein, an agency of the
Department of Arts and Culture.
The vision of the Arf Bank is to

promote, foster and stimulate a
vibrant market for the collection
of South African contemporary
visual art. It is tasked with
purchasing artworks from South
African artists, particularly that of
emerging artists in order o lease
and sell the artworks to South
African government
departments, private companies
and private individuals.
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FOREWORD BY THE
CHAIRPERSON OF COUNCIL

“Creating materials that are designed with digital in mind,
rather than as an afterthought, would allow museums to

consider how they might be able to act as both knowledge

repositories, and science communicators to entirely new

audiences.”

Rebecca Kahn

Introduction

This report details the financial
and non-financial performance
of Year 1 of the Museum’s Five-
Year Strategic Plan (2020-2025).

Despite a challenging year, | am
pleased to report that most of our
targets set (89%) were either
exceeded or achieved.
Performance was hampered by
the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Museum has plans in place to
address those targets that were
partially achieved (7,8%) or not
achieved (3,1%) in the new
financial year. Detailed
performance information can be
found in Part B of this report.

% Achievement across
Performance Areas for
2020/21

Achieved/Overachieved
Partially achieved
W Not achieved

Surviving and thriving during the
pandemic

The National Museum and itfs
satellites rely on patrons visiting its
facilities and experiencing ifs
collections through permanent
and femporary exhibitions. The
COVID-19 pandemic and
subsequent global lockdown
affected the Museum’s ability to
carry out these functions for most
of the financial year.

Council took an early decision to
close the Museum to the public
and had put measures in place
for Management and researchers
to work remotely. Exhibitions and
celebrations of special days
moved online and the Museum
built new audiences and
improved its national footprint.
The collections were showcased
in these virtual spaces in non-
fraditional exhibition formats
which heavily relied on the
creativity of our Design and
Research teams, who curated
our exhibitions in the virtual
space. The experience
highlighted the importance of our
collections and the digitisation
thereof. We learnt that the
Museum is not just about the
buildings and that we need to
create museum spaces that work
for our varied audiences.

These experiences are why we
chose the theme of this Annual

R Chairpersoniy

Report to be “Museum spaces
that work.”

Research and Conservation
highlights

The Museum has a programme in
its strategy entitled Research and
Information Management, the
purpose of which is to undertake
research according to ethical
standards to produce high
quality results relating to the
various research disciplines of the
National Museum and fo
communicate the relevance and
meaning of these results,
including contributing data to
current important debates and
frends of research, to as broad
an audience as possible.

During the reporting period, the
Museum Council approved a
new policy called the Ethical
Research Policy which establishes
the principles and responsibilities
for ethical conduct in research
supported by the Museum. A
Research Ethics Committee has
been appointed and their main
function is fo assess research and
research projects at the Museum
concerning animal and human
subjects and provide ethical
clearance for same. All new
research projects obtained
ethical clearance.

Dr Jennifer Botha of the Karoo
Palaeontology Department at



the Natfional Museum recently
underwent re-evaluation and
rating by the National Research
Foundation and she was placed
in the B1 NRF rating sub-category.
This rating recognised that she
enjoys considerable international
recognition for the high quality
and impact of her research
outputs as a leading internationall
scholar in her field. The Museum
has 2 NRF-rated researchers on
our staff.

Museum scientists undertake and
promote research in several
natural and human science
disciplines. During the financiall
period, a total of 21 research
studies were conducted on
existing collections of the
Museum. Research output was
increased by 44 scientific
publications in peer-reviewed
journals and 45 in popular journals
and magazines in the year. Full
details of these publications
appear in the Annexures
contained in Part B of this Annual
Report.

Museum scientists disseminated
their research at 11 national and
international conferences. Our
scientists supervised 6 PhDs and
Masters students and compiled 2
cultural or technical reports. A
total of 74 manuscripts were
reviewed for infernational and
national scientific publications,
research theses, scientific reports
and researcher evaluations.
Scientfists presented 9 academic
and 9 popular lectures.

Two scientists from the National
Museum were involved in the
description of 20 new species of
terrestrial invertebrates in the last
financial year. These new species
were described in infernational
journals and comprise 17 mite
species and 3 dung beetle
species. The scientists involved
are Dr Lizel Hugo-Coetfzee and Dr
Gimo Daniel from the
Department of Terrestrial
Invertebrates at the Nationall
Museum.

Through our collections and
research, the Museum is
connected to the national and
international scientific
community. Our scientists
participated in a number of
collaborative projects. 7 new
collaborative research projects
were registered during the year.
Edition 75 of Culna Magazine was
produced and 37 articles were
published on line. Volume 36 of
the Indago Journal was published
in hardcopy and online.

CULNAT

DECEMBER 2020 VOLUME 36 ISSN (06 7-9208

Investiga
and humanity

Published for the National Museum, Bloemfontein

The Museum engages in
conservation by building and
curating representative
collections of Natural and Human
Science, including Fine Arts. The
Museum added 28 129 new
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specimens to our natural and
human science collections in the
year. The ArtBankSA opened an
additional funding window during
lockdown and they purchased
210 artworks during the year.
Annually the Collections
Department audits the heritage
collections for compliance with
the Collections Policy and GRAP.
It is pleasing to note that a
compliance rate of 88,9% was
achieved with procedures for
conservation, curation and
management of collections
during the annual collections
audit. The Council approved a
Policy for the Digitisation of
Heritage Collections which is
aligned to the Draft National
Policy on the Digitisation of Arts,
Culture and heritage.

PESP programmes

The National Museum was
awarded funding to implement
two PESP programmes in the
visual arts sector as a response to
the clarion call by the
Honourable President for job
creation with a focus on youth,
women and people with disability
tfowards economic recovery.

The first programme ‘Art bank
employment stimulus program -
“banking on art”- connecting
lives’ had two streams. In the first
stfream, the Museum partnered
with CCIFSA to deliver the
programme which sought to
commission visual artists to each
create art works to be
considered for acquisition by the
Art Bank. The programme
benefited 100 visual artists from alll
over South Africa and R 2,3 million
was spent.

The Museum partnered with
VANSA for the second part of the
programme whereby VANSA
assisted the Museum to place
emerging visual artists and/or
graduates in infernship with
commercial galleries or visual arts
institutions. The programme
benefitted 58 young people from
all over South Africa and R 1,3
million was spent.



PESP programme

The second PESP programme,
Towards a People’s Culture, was
awarded to Oliewenhuis Art
Museum to the value of R 1
million. The programme enabled
100 unemployed Free State-
based, young artists to create
public art in the Free State. The
artists received stipends for two
months and participated in
creatfing murals atf selected sites
in the Free State to raise
awareness on social ills such as
Gender Based Violence and the
prevention of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Challenges Faced by Council
Treasury made budget cuts to
funding allocated to government
entities in response fo COVID-19-
related demands on the fiscus.
Unfortunately, the Museum's
budget was reduced twice
during the year under review.

The Museum is increasingly relying
on grant funding fo deliver its
programmes. A focus area for
Council during the year was
fundraising and looking at
alternative funding sources fo
supplement our grant from DSAC.

The Year Ahead

The Council will focus on the

following in the coming year:

¢ Fundraising and sourcing
alternative grant funding due to
ongoing budget cuts imposed
by DSAC and Treasury;

* Implement its Employment
Equity Plan and Development
of Black Scienfist programme;

* Create inclusive displays and
exhibits and embrace new
museum spaces;

* Renovations and Maintenance
of the infrastructure at the
National Museum and satellites
especially regarding safety
concerns;

* Digitisation of the collections;

* Declining visitor numbers to the
Museum; and

 Strengthening of the
governance of the
organisation.
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we experienced during the year
and despite these, we
succeeded in playing our
governance role with minimall
disruptions to our calendar and
programme. My appreciation
goes out to all Council members
of the National Museum for their
passion, unwavering support and
commitment. Further, fo the
officials of the Department of Arts
and Culture, we appreciate your
guidance and support.
Congratulations to the CEO,
Management and staff of the
National Museum on achieving
these performance outcomes
and a clean audit report. It
wouldn't be possible without your
hard work.

Conclusion

The spotlight has been on
museums for many years to make
changes and the pandemic has
provided us with the opporfunity
fo implement these changes
more rapidly. We will continue fo
implement our digitisation
strategy and partner with our
communities to create museum
spaces that are inclusive and
relevant.

Advocate J. E. Leshabane
National Museum, Bloemfontein
31 July 2021



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

OVERVIEW

“No resource is more powerful in an organization than a high
performance team. What great individuals cannot

accomplish on their own can be achieved by a high

performance team.”

Introduction

In 2019 the United Nations
passed a resolution declaring
the year 2021 the International
Year of the Creative Economy for
Sustainable Development. The
world did not anficipate that the
creative industry would be
devastated by the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic. During
lockdown the public had limited
access to the physical space of
cultural institutions like Museumes.
Museums had to provide access
to their collections and research
through virtual platforms.

It is expected that this
pandemic, like the pandemics of
the past, will have long-lasting
effects on both the form and
function of museums. Physical
visits to museums are sfill the
primary means by which our
patrons, especially children,
engage with our collections and
science knowledge.

The theme of this Annual Report,
which is “Museum spaces that
work”, is reflective of the new
opportunities for the Museum to
define museum spaces that work
for our communities:

* Our new Ethical Research
Policy recognises that the
Natfional Museum was
established during colonial
fimes and recognises that its

Phil Bryson

collections, exhibitions and
research have been
influenced by European social
and cultural paradigms. It
provides that research at the
Museum will be expressed with
due and fair consideration of
the sensitivities of others,
including those in minority
communities of all kinds,
incorporating all religions,
culfures and genders.

New research outcomes will
confribute to creating exciting
multicultural exhibition spaces:
spaces where open dialogue
about our painful past is
encouraged and new ideas
about our shared future are
catalysed.

Digifisation Policy has been
approved and fargets have
been set for digitisation of
Museum collections. This will
strengthen the Museum'’s
ability to curate physical and
virtual exhibitions using new
technologies. Digifisation will
also allow for the storage of
information and research on
collections together with the
digital representation of the
heritage item, improving
access.

Collaborations have been
established with national and
international partners to work
on our collections and shared
exhibitions spaces.

12

Audit Report Outcome for 20/21
| am pleased to report that the

Museum achieved a clean and
unqgualified audit for the period.

General overview

The Museum’s income was
severely affected by unplanned
budget cuts during the financial
year as a result of Treasury
reprioritising funding due to the
pandemic. The Museum'’s
primary income consisted of
grant funding received from
DSAC in an amount of R 56, 1
million. Other significant income
received was from interest (R 4, 2
million) and PESP Project (R 5, 1
million). An amount of R241
thousand was received as
research grants. Income from
Museum entrance fees and
rentals dropped considerably as
the Museum was closed to the
public for a significant part of the
year. Spending frends were also
affected and the Museum only
managed to spend 90% of its
operational budget. Savings
were realised due to a
moratorium being implemented
on the physical attendance of
national and international
Research Conferences and
Workshops.

The Museum did not experience
capacity constraints or
challenges in the reporting
period. No activities were



discontinued and no new or
proposed activities were
infroduced. There were no
events after the reporting date
to report on.

Celebrating Special Days
Special Days were mostly
celebrated virtually and the
Museum curated content-rich
experiences focusing on
promoting nation building and
social cohesion. The Museum
celebrated the following special
days during the financial period:

“A Chain of Voices, a LGBTQI
virtual exhibition” — International
Museum Day

The National Museum
celebrated International
Museum Day with a LGBTQl
virtual exhibition. LGBTQI
pertains collectively to people
who identify as lesbian, gay,
bisexual, fransgender, queer and
intersex. The theme for 2020 was:
Equality: Diversity and Inclusion.
The question posed was what it
means to be an inclusive
museum today. How can the
National Museum Bloemfontein
with its own history of colonialism,
segregation, apartheid,
homophobia and exclusion
become meaningfully inclusive?
How can we recalibrate what
we do - from collecting to
exhibition-making to educational
programming — in order to reflect
the multiplicity of our histories
and make audible the diversity
of South African voices?

South Africa’s Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual, Transgender, Queer
and Asexual (LGBTQA)
community’s voice is one of
those that are currently absent
from our exhibitions. Members of
this community were not only an
active part of the struggle for
social justice and equality during
apartheid but continued to fight
for the same rights in the post-
apartheid era. The purpose of
this virtual exhibition, titled “A
Chain of Voices”, was 1o
infroduce the general public to
a select number of ‘voices’ from
members of the LGBTQA

community through a
combination of short written
biographical profiles and links to
relevant videos on You Tube.
The LGBTQA community was an
integral part of the struggle for
social justice and equally during
the apartheid era (1948-1994).
They contfinue to contribute in
this regard since the advent of
democracy in 1994. Notable
activists, personalities and
organisations of the apartheid
period were featured.

“#SilencingTheGuns: Creating
Conducive Conditions for
Africa’s Development and
Intensifying the Fight against the
COVID-19 Pandemic” - Africa
Month virtual exhibition

The National Museum hosted a
month-long virtual exhibition to
celebrate Africa Month whilst
under lockdown. Africa Month
was celebrated virtually and
online due to COVID-19
lockdown in South Africa. The
theme for the celebrations was:
#SilencingTheGuns: Creating
Conducive Condifions for
Africa’s Development and
Intensifying the Fight against the
COVID-19 Pandemic. The
Museum showcased African
items in its collections and
shared popular content about
Africa in the virtual exhibition.

Multiculturalism in Africais a
fopic which should be spoken
about more often amongst
African people and could
influence Africans to stop
xenophobic acts. As part of the
virtual exhibition, an information
video about unity amongst
Africans was compiled and
shared online.

A large part of the virtual
celebrations focused on the
Basotho blanket, explaining the
different meanings of these
blankets / patterns. Of all the
people in southern Africa, none
has developed a social-cultural
significance around the blanket
fo the same degree as the
Basotho nation. For them the
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blanket has become part of
everyday life and a Sotho
dressed in a tradifional blanket
reveals his status to his
community. To outsiders the
blanket has become a mark of
ethnicity and a token of cultural
identification.

‘Woke’ - Looking Back, Looking
Forward’- A Youth Day Virtual
Exhibition

16 June is dedicated to the
youth of 1976 who stood up
against the Apartheid
government and laid down their
lives fighting for freedom and the
right to equal education. 2020
marks 44 years since the uprising
in which many children lost their
lives while standing up against a
system that sought to strip them
of their identity, and break their
spirit.

The year 2020 marked the 40th
anniversary of the 1980 school
boycotts — another seminall
event in the history of the anti-
apartheid struggle. The virtual
exhibition fitled ‘Woke' — Looking
Back, Looking Forward' aimed to
foreground the often-forgotten
voices of those who have
parficipated in these campaigns
in order to aid the education of
the millennials as they confinue
to face the challenges of
decolonisation and the 21st
century.

Mandela Day Commemorations
Mandela Day is celebrated
around the world on 18 July
every year. The Museum held a
virtual exhibition to
commemorate the day.
Celebrations in 2020 were
hampered by our lockdown
status as a result of the COVID -
19 pandemic. A call fo action
was issued for the world to share
the successes that we have
achieved and the lessons we
have learned as we battle this
pandemic, and ifs effect on
those less fortunate than
ourselves.



It is recognised that in South
Africa we are dealing with two
pandemics at the same fime:
GBV and COVID-19. Cyril
Ramaphosa recently said “At a
fime when the pandemic has left
us all feeling vulnerable and
uncertain, violence is being
unleashed on women and
children with a brutality that
defies comprehension.” GBV
was a cause very close to Nelson
Mandela and the Nationall
Museum decided to raise
awareness about this cause on
Mandela Day. Through a series
of social media posts the
Museum reflected on Mandela’s
feelings about this scourge.
Gender Based Violence has
been a pandemic in South
Africa which existed long before
COVID -19.

The History Department
participated in the virtual
exhibition on Mandela Day and
they focused on his love of sports
and how he played a critical
role in using rugby as a tool of
reconciliation and unification in
South Africa’s fransition fowards
democratic rule in the 1990s.

“Walking a mile in her shoes” - A
Women'’s Month virtual exhibition
The Collections Department
commemorated Women'’s
Month with a virtual exhibition.
The exhibition was entitled
“Walking a mile in her shoes”
and showcased four pairs of
shoes from the collections of the
National Museum. The shoes
belonged to women who broke
boundaries in their respective
fields, namely Gladys Steyn,
Blanca Borckenhagen, Amanda
Coetzer and Caroline Fichardt.

International Day of Persons with
Disabilities

The National Museum currently
hosts a femporary exhibition that
offers a unique opportunity for
visitors with disabilities.
Researchers from 11 different
Departments collaborated to
put a large variety of items on
display in the temporary

exhibition space, opposite the
cafeteria on the ground floor.
Almost all of these specimens
are available for fouch by the
visually impaired and blind, so
that all visitors should be able o
‘experience’ the objects and
learn from the interesting,
enlarged text and / or braille.

Objects include enlarged 3D
prints of small and microscopic
animals, most probably
completely unseen by more
than 95% of people. Both
sighted and blind visitors can, for
example, experience the many
differences in bird beak and
claw shape and structure, soll
mite character, scorpion claw
and tail structure, small mammal
shape and hair thickness, and
bat skeletons that allow them to
live, feed, reproduce and survive
in their specific environments.
Also visitors can encounter some
very old artefacts from our
Anthropology and History
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collections, relevant to people
living with disabilities, and
examples of art where the non-
blind are dependent on blind
people to inferpret the meaning
of the work of art for them.

Employment Equity Policy and
Plan

Council approved the
Employment Equity Policy and
Plan in the year under review.
The Museum conducted a
desktop analysis to determine
the extent of under
representation of employees
from the designated groups in
the different occupational levels
of the employer’s workforce in
terms of race, gender and
disability. Under representation
exists in the category of Black
staff overall (African, Indian and
Coloured) and People with
Disabilities.

Care has been taken when
setting targets to avoid over-
representation in lower
occupational levels and under
representation in higher
occupational levels. The
Museum has a limited budget so
the opportunity to expand the
staff complement is not
available. Opportunity to
change the profile of the staff
complement will only arise when
a member resigns or retires.

Further, the Council approved a
Programme to Develop Black
Scientists, which focuses on
developing identified staff
members as scientists and also
developing Black science interns
as scientists. Taking info account
the Museum'’s current
demographics a target has
been set for 10% improvement of
Black staff in each under-
represented occupational level.

Request for Rollover of Funds

The Museum applied for rollover
of surplus funds from the 19/20
financial period and this was
granted by Treasury. Treasury
approval was granted in terms of
PFMA section 53(3) and National



Treasury Instruction 6 for the
Museum to retain the cash
surplus to be used to fund post-
retirement medical obligations,
upgrading of the Museum'’s
security, server and file storage,
replacement of old computers,
furniture older than 20 years,
auditorium seats, vehicles for
staff site visits, and the
organizational review process.

Employee Benefit changes

The Natfional Museum had three
categories of Pension
Memberships which were
converted on 01 November 2020
to Defined Contribution
Membership.

e Defined Benefit Membership:
with 7 members.

¢ Defined Conftribution
Membership With Underpin
(Minimum Guarantee): with 13
members.

e Defined Conftribution
Membership: with 84 members.

The trustees of the Pension Fund
approved new group life cover
as a lump sum benefit equal to 4
x the member’s annual
pensionable salary. This is
underwritten by Hollard Life and
was effective as of 01 November
2020. The reason for the above
change is that the existing
benefit was no longer
sustainable in terms of longer-
term affordability as ABSA had
implemented a substantial
increase in premiums, alleging
that they had made
miscalculations when quoting. In
addition, a simplified multiple of
salary group life benefit was
deemed to be more fair towards
members who are not married or
do not have children.

Council agreed that the
Museum should explore
converting to an Umbrella Fund
fo save costs. This opfion is being
explored by the Trustees and will
be processed in the new
financial year.

Supply Chain Management
There were no SCM-related

findings in the year under review.

The SCM environment at the
Museum is mature and there are
adequate policies and
procedures in place to guide
procurement. The SCM
Manager, who reports to the
CFQO, supports and guides the
Museum management and staff
on SCM. The Museum did not
conclude any unsolicited bid
proposals for the year under
review.

Audit Report Matters from the
prior period

The Museum received an
unqualified audit report in the
prior period and had in place an
Audit Tracking Register to track
the resolution of all findings. This
was reported on quarterly to the
Audit and Risk Committee.
Currently all findings have been
resolved.

The National Museum in the
Triennium

Employment costs currently
consume about 76% of the
budget. These costs are
expected to increase as the
Museum has to employ
additional staff as COVID-19
compliance assistants. At the
end of the financial period 2021
to 2024, the National Museum
will have in its employ about 120
staff members. This poses a
budgetary challenge that will
need attention if the Museum is
to continue attracting top
research talent, including NRF-
rated researchers. However, the
Museum remains an
economically viable entity.

The Museum has embedded
Enterprise-Wide Risk
Management into its strategy
and operations. Important to
note is that significant strides
have been made over the five-
year period in the management
of risks at the Museum, and this
has franslated into tangible
improvements in the Museum'’s
overall performance and audit
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Acknowledgements

During the financial year, Sheryl
Msomi, ArtBankSA project
manager, was seconded to the
Williom Humphreys Art Gallery to
provide managerial support. |
am thankful to Nathi Gumede
and Yolanda de Kock who
assisted in managing the
ArtBankSA in Sheryl’'s absence. |
am also grateful fo Dawie de
Swardt and Lizel Hugo-Coetzee
for the acting assistance that
they have provided in vacant
posifions.

Despite the lockdown and the
pandemic, the Museum has
made significant strides in
achieving the objectives and
targets set out in its Five-Year
Strategic Plan. These successes
can be aftributed to hard work
by the Heads of Departments
and staff of the Museum, some
of whom are foremost experts in
their field. | would like fo thank
them for their commitment,
passion and unwavering support.

Our Council Chairperson,
Advocate Leshabane, provides
strategic leadership and
guidance in herrole. | am
indebted to her for this support,
especially during the difficult
year we experienced. She
helped us successfully navigate
the unchartered waters of
operating a Museum during a
pandemic. | would like also to
extend my thanks to the Council
of the National Museum and the
committees for their support and
counsel.

\

S. Snell

Chief Executive Officer
National Museum, Bloemfontein
31 July 2021



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY &
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY
FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following:

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report are consistent with the annual financial
statements audited by the Auditor General.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued
by the National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the standards
applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the
judgements made in this information.

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control
which has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March
2021.

Yours faithfully

\

Chief Executive Officer
Name: S. Snell
Date: 31 July 2021

| ; L\;ﬂ—\_,m.;--'

Chairperson of the Board
Name: Adv. J. E. Leshabane
Date: 31 July 2021
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

The National Museum is a Natural History Museum, a Cultural History Museum and an Art Museum.
Against the background of the international definition of a museum as a non-profit-making, permanent
institution in the service of society and of its development, and open o the public, which acquires,
conserves, researches, communicates and exhibits, for purposes of study, education and enjoyment,
material evidence of people and their environment, the Natfional Museum performs its conservation,
research and educational functions in a broad spectrum of disciplines in the Natural Sciences, Human
Sciences and Fine Arts.

Vision
To be known as the best heritage centre in Africa.
Mission

To provide heritage information, an enjoyable experience and an invaluable tourism resource to all
people through quality research, conservation, education and exhibitions.

The Museum’s functions are
e Conservation: To build and curate representative collections of natural science, human
science and art objects which are consistent with the objectives and activities of the Museum.
e Research: To undertake and promote research in the approved disciplines of the Museum.
e Education: To disseminate information on nature, culture and art, through publications,
exhibitions and a variety of educational programmes.
e Tourism: To provide an invaluable tourism resource in the central interior of South Africa.

Values
The National Museum is driven by the following values:

Excellence

Professionalism

Respect

Co-operation

Teamwork

Commitment & Passion
Innovation

Community empowerment
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LEGISLATIVE & OTHER MANDATES

Cultural Institutions Act

The National Museum was established in ferms of section 3 of the Cultural Institutions Act (Act 119 of 1998)
and in terms of section 5 is governed by a Council appointed by the Minister of Arts and Culture.

Itis a PFMA schedule 3A entity that was established by the Ministry of Sport, Arts and Culture in terms of
the Cultural Institutions Act 1998 (Act No. 119 of 1998).

Parliament has the power to conduct oversight of all organs of state, including those at provincial and
local government level. Portfolio committees exercise oversight over a particular government
department or “portfolio” and deal with bills within that portfolio.

Parliamentary committees are established as instruments of the Houses in terms of the Constitution to
facilitate oversight and monitor the government. These committees are the “engine rooms” of
Parliament’s oversight and legislative work. Committees scrutinise legislation, oversee government
action, and interact with the public. One of the most important aspects of the oversight function is the
consideration by committees of annual reports of organs of State, and reports of the Auditor-General.
Depending on the purpose of the oversight, the Committee will either request a briefing from the organ
of State or visit it for fact-finding.

National Living Heritage Policy

The DSAC has developed the National Living Heritage Policy with the objective of the safeguarding of
living heritage and ensuring compliance with the 2003 UNESCO Convention on Intangible Cultural
Heritage Convention.

National Policy on Digitisation of Heritage Resources

The Policy recognises and fakes account of the implications of the rapid advances in the evolution of
Information and Communication Technologies for “notions and practices of collective memory and
heritage”. The Policy identifies the key risks to the future preservation of collections, including the
fragmented character of current digitisation initiatives; the financial resources available to support
digitisation; the lack of consistency in the standards and guidelines; and the threat of the proliferation of
digital archives containing important national content that is largely uncontrolled and unconnected to
the national memory systems. The Policy seeks to address these risks.

Ratification / Accession to International Conventions
Various infernational conventions and profocols govern the culture and heritage landscape. The DAC
has developed policies in line with the applicable conventions and initiated the ratification/accession
process by submitting the following international conventions to Parliament for tabling:

a) UNESCO Convention (2001) on the Protection of the Underwater Cultural Heritage;

b) Second Protocol to the 1954 Hague Convention for the Protection of Cultural Property in the

Event of Armed Conflict (1999);

c) UNIDROIT Convention on Stolen or lllegally Exported Cultural Objects (1995).

The Use of Official Languages Act

The Use of Official Languages Act, which seeks to regulate and monitor the use of official languages by
government, came into operation with effect from 2 May 2013.

Review of the White Paper on Arts and Culture

The Revised White Paper seeks to align the Arts Culture and Heritage space with the broader shifts in
government policy and priorities and to elevate the contribution that arts, culture and heritage might

18



make towards social cohesion, nation-building and economic empowerment. It also seeks fo address
the challenges that the Sector faces, to remove duplication and overlaps in mandate, and to rationalise
the number of entities falling under the DAC and their associated institutional activities.

The RWP recommends a substantial restructuring of institutional support for the Sector. Key questions
arising from this approach include the detailed programming of these institutions and how they will be
able to meet their mandates with the available financial and human resources.

National Development Plan

The Natfional Development Plan — Vision 2030 (2011) outlines a vision for the country, aiming, inter alia, to
eliminate poverty and reduce inequality by 2030. Chapter 15 of this plan asserts that the Arts, Culture
and Heritage Sector is viewed as a potentially powerful driver for creating a sense of inclusiveness and for
encouraging inferaction between South Africans from different social backgrounds. Importantly, too, it is
viewed as capable of conftributing to the mobilisation of active and responsible citizenry. Furthermore,
the NDP highlights that the economic value and confribution of the Sport, Arts, Culture and Heritage
Sector is increasingly recognised, and that strategies must be developed and implemented to exploit its
potential on a global scale.

The NDP aspires to arrive at a situation in which South Africans will be more conscious of that which they
have in common, rather than the differences that separate people. This implies that interventions need
to facilitate an experience by all South Africans that cuts across the divisions of race, gender, and class.
Accordingly, a central focus of the NDP is on creating opportunities that equalise the life chances of
South Africans. The NDP further emphasises the importance of redress through measures such as
employment equity and black economic empowerment as a means to righting the wrongs of the past
as part of this process of equalising opportunities. The NDP calls for the promotion of social cohesion
across society that is based on respect and appreciation for constitutional values enshrined in the
Constitution.

Sustainable Developmental Goals

The UN has emphasised that arts and culture will play an important role in pursuing each of the 17
Sustainable Development Goals. The safeguarding and promotion of culture is an end in itself, and at
the same time it contributes directly to many of the SDGs  safe and sustainable cities, decent work and
economic growth, reduced inequalities, the environment, promoting gender equality and peaceful and
inclusive societies. The indirect benefits of culture are accrued through the culturally-informed and
effective implementations of the development goals.

Cultural diversity is necessary for sustainable development for two reasons: the first is human survival as a
means of cultural existence. The coexistence of various cultures leads to humans being able to better
adapt to the environment. It is because of the coexistence of diverse cultures that the human race has
overcome change and confinued fo survive. The emergence of differing cultures and maintenance of
cultural diversity has raised the possibility of the human race adapting fo environmental change in the
future. Furthermore, in order for culture itself to retain its creativity and vitality, the existence of other
cultures is a must. New ideas are born from other cultures, and the source of cultural creativity lies within
constant encounters between different cultures.

Agenda 2063

At a continental level, sport, arts and culture contribute to the Agenda 2063, a forward-looking
continental framework. Agenda 2063 is anchored on the AU vision of “a shared strategic framework for
inclusive growth and sustainable development “and based on 7 aspirations derived from consultations.
Three of the aspiration have particular relevance to the Museum:

a) An Africa with a strong cultural identity, common heritage, shared values and ethics;

b) An Africa whose development is people-driven, relying on the potential of African people,
especially its women and youth, and caring for children and

c) An Africa of good governance, democracy, respect for human rights, justice and the rule of
law.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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PART B:
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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AUDITOR’S REPORT:
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to
provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being
reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements section of the Auditor’s Report.

Referto page 62 of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

SITUATIONAL ANAYLYSIS

Service Delivery Environment

The Natfional Museum provides professional services in the curation and conservation of heritage-based
collections, in research and education, of benefit to a broad spectrum of the community. Outputs and
standards have either been maintained or improved upon by the Museum. Where targets have not been
achieved, measures will be considered in future to address these aspects. The Museum strives to address
fransformation, in a broad sense, across the range of its processes and activities, from policy development
and recruitment, through to its collections, research, education and community outreach programmes.
There is an ongoing emphasis on the important role the Museum must play in contributing to the
transformation of the heritage sector.

Organisational environment

The Annual Report should provide readers with an understanding of the organisational challenges and
successes experienced by the public entity in the year under review. The aim of this ‘overview of the
organisational environment’ is to provide a description of any significant developmentsinternal to the public
entity that may have impacted on the public entity’s ability to deliver on its Strategic Plan and Annual
Performance Plan, e.g. the resignation and/or appointment of key personnel such as the CEO or the CFO, a
strike by significant portions of the personnel employed by the public entity, orrestructuring efforts, significant
system failures or cases of corruption.

Given that these are factors intfernal to the public entity and therefore ostensibly within the public entity’s
control, it would be expected that the public entity gives some indication of any measures that were
adoptedto mitigate the impact of these events on service delivery.

Key policy developments and legislative changes

There were no significant changes to the National Museum's legislative and other mandates. The pending
White Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage, as well as the National Museum'’s policy, the draft versions of
which are stillunder discussion, will doubftlessimpact on the Museum's operations.

Strategic Objectives

Below are the approved Strategic Objectives:

PROGRAMME 1: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Programme 1: Business Development

Purpose Programme purpose:

*To properly manage and maintain the natural and cultural heritage and art collections;

*Serve as centres for promotion of research and development;

eEnsure that the Museum remains a centre of research excellence by publishing research output in
accredited scientific journals, often collaborating with other national or international researchers; and

*Building human and research capacity.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable) Sub - Programme Purpose

Curation and Conservation of Collections | Programme purpose: To collect and conserve materials and objects of natural and
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cultural heritage relevant to the disciplines of the National Museum, which represent
an important part of the collective natfional estate. In addition, to give attention fo
expanding collections where appropriate to include materials, objects and
information to promote an enhanced sense of national pride in the diverse cultural
and natural heritage shared by all South Africans.

Research and Information Management Programme purpose: To undertake research according to ethical standards to
produce high quality results relating to the various research disciplines of the
National Museum and to communicate the relevance and meaning of these results,
including conftributing data fo current important debates and trends of research, to
as broad an audience as possible. Research programmes will incorporate aspects
relevant to promoting a greater awareness of the importance and role of previously
marginalized communities in contributing to South Africa as a nation.

PROGRAMME 2: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Programme 2: Public Engagement

Purpose Programme purpose: to inform, consult, involve, collaborate with and empower the Museum'’s
stakeholders in the diverse cultural and natural heritage.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable) Sub - Programme Purpose

1. Marketing To promote a greater awareness and better understanding of South Africa’s diverse
cultural and natural heritage through relevant formal and informal activities and
exhibitions.

2. Public Educational Programmes | To provide informative and enjoyable educational experiences through relevant
formal and informal activities and public outreach programmes, thereby
contributing fo promoting a greater awareness and better understanding of South
Africa’s diverse cultural and natural heritage.

PROGRAMME 3: COMPLIANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Programme 3: Compliance and Adminisiration

Purpose To provide the necessary professional support and compliance services to ensure the achievement of the
Museum'’s primary objectives of carrying out quality research, expanding and managing diverse heritage
collections and communicating this to all, through educational programmes, exhibitions and publications,
to emphasise the importance of this diverse heritage to the South African nation.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable) Sub - Programme Purpose

Support Services To provide support through human resources, information technology, security, risk
management, and supply chain management to enable the Museum to achieve its
mandate.

Compliance Services To provide support to the Museum to ensure compliance with legislation, guidelines,
frameworks to avoid audit findings.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
BY PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

INITIAL APP SUBMITTED PRIOR TO RE-TABLING
ON 30 JUNE 2020

COVID-19 Consequence and Response:

In response to the national restrictions placed upon the museum during the financial year of 2020/21,
necessary amendments to the initial Annual Performance Plan were applied. The below table contains the
original targets as set out by the Annual Performance plan, prior to re-tabling on 30 June 2020. The table
displays the performance of the first quarter only, against the initial annual targets.

PROGRAMME 1: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Programme 1: Business Development

Purpose Programme purpose:

*To properly manage and maintain the natural and cultural heritage and art collections;

eServe as centres for promotion of research and development;

*Ensure that the Museum remains a centre of research excellence by publishing research output in
accredited scientific journals, often collaborating with other national or international researchers; and

*Building human and research capacity.
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Sub Programmes (if Applicable)

Sub - Programme Purpose

Curation and Conservation of Collections

To collect and conserve materials and objects of natural and cultural heritage
relevant to the disciplines of the National Museum, which represent an important
part of the collective national estate. In addition, to give attention to expanding
collections where appropriate fo include materials, objects and information to
promote an enhanced sense of national pride in the diverse cultural and natural
heritage shared by all South Africans.

Research and Information Management

To undertake research according to ethical standards to produce high quality resulfs
relating to the various research disciplines of the Natfional Museum and to
communicate the relevance and meaning of these results, including confributing
data to current important debates and trends of research, to as broad an audience
as possible. Research programmes will incorporate aspects relevant fo promoting a
greater awareness of the importance and role of previously marginalized
communities in contributing tfo South Africa as a nation.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements as at 30 June 2020.

Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target to / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets
44 475 specimens | 38 255 10 000 new 1195 8 805 Targets were |Target was
(“material units”) | specimens heritage Specimen reduced due |adjusted
added to natural | (“material units”) |items added. to COVID. due to
history added to added to lockdown
collections. natural history natural The planned and closure
collections. science 155 target is of the
collection. reported Museum.
against per-
formance unfil
date of re-
tabling.
1694 objects 4036 objects 1000 new 1 object 999 Non -achieve- |Target was
(“material units”) | (“material units”) | heritage added. ment was due |adjusted
added to cultural | added fo items to lockdown, |due to
history (& cultural | cultural history (& |added to most lockdown
/ humanities) cultural / Human Research and closure
collections. humanities) Science Assistants of the
collections. Collection. could not Museum.
obtain direct
access to
collections.
RO spent on art R250 000 spent 2 new N/A N/A Annual target |Target was
collection by on art collection |heritage and not adjusted
31 March 2019. by 31 March items achieved on |due fo
Two artworks 2020. added to date of re- lockdown
donated to the Oliewenhuis tabling. and closure
value of R31 500. Art of the
Museum. No quorfe|y Museum.
planned
target.
118 artworks 60 artworks 100 N/A N/A This is an Target was
purchased for purchased for artworks annual target |adjusted
National ArtBank | National ArtBank | purchased. and will be due to
(NAB) collections | (NAB) collections achieved at  |lockdown
by 31 March by 31 March year end. and closure
2019. 2020. of the
No planned  |Museum.
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
New Target. 20 artworks N/A N/A This is an Target was
leased and annual target |adjusted
/or sold per and will be due to
annum. achieved at  |lockdown
year end. and closure
of the
No planned  |Museum.
quartely tar-
get on date

of re-tabling.
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target to / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets
% Annual Annual Collections 100% None No deviation. |Target was
compli- | collections audit | collections audit |Department adjusted
ance successfully successfully audit due to
with completed by completed by Heritage lockdown
Conserva- Collection and closure
tion Policy |31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020.  |for com- of the
and pliance with Museum.
GRAP. Collections
Policy.
New Target. Digitfisation 100% None No deviation. |No revision.
Policy
finalised.
No of A total of 90 new | There were a 10 new 0 10 Due to Target was
loans of  |incoming or total of 22 new | outgoing lockdown no |adjusted
collections | outgoing loans of | incoming or loans. loans could due to
items. collection outgoing loans be processed |lockdown
material were of collection in the first and closure
processed during | material for the quarter. of the

the year ending | period. Museum.

31 March 2019.

No of New Target. New Target. 5research 2 3 Annual Target was
research studies on planned not revised.
studies existing target re-
conduc- collections. porting on the
fed on first quarter.
existing
collections
No of 38 popular 52 popular 30 popular 14 16 Planned Target was
popular | articles published | articles research annual target [not revised.
research |fo published to articles reported
articles published. against the
published. |31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020. quarterly

target.
Develop a|New Target. New Target. Develop a N/A None This is an Target was
policy for policy for annual target |not revised.
ethical ethical and will be
research research at achieved at
at the the year end.
Museum. Museum.

New Target. Ethical clearan- |When N/A None This is an Target was
ce confirmed for |needed annual target |not revised.
all new regis- research and will be
tered research projects achieved at
projects. (25 have year end.
projects -100% ethical
ethical clearance. No planned
clearance). quartely tar-

get on date
of re-tabling.
No of New Target. 5 research N/A None This is an Target was
research grants annual target [not revised.
grants awarded fo and will be
awarded Museum achieved at
fo scientists. year end.
Museum
Scientists. No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of NRF |3 2 S 2 1 This is an Target was
rated NRF rated NRF rated NRF rated annual farget | adjusted
scientists. | scientists as at scientists as at scientists. and will be due fo
achieved at  |lockdown

31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020. yearend. gf”fi g'OSUfe

No planned  |Museum.
quartely tar-
get on date

of re-tabling.
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets
No of New Target. 15 N/A None This is an Target was
research per annum annual target |adjusted
fieldtrips research and will be due to
conduc- fieldtrips achieved at  |lockdown
ted. conducted. year end. and closure
of the
No planned  |Museum.
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of 30 40 30 1 29 Targets were  |Target was
research | Conference/wor | Conference/wor |research reduced due |adjusted
papers of |kshop kshop papers or to COVID and |due to
posters presentations per | presentations posters the Museum  |lockdown
delivered |annum. given by delivered at and there and closure
at research were no of the
research 31 March 2020. | conferen- fargets on Museum.
conferen- ces. planned on
ces. the date of
re-tabling.
No of 14 36 15 N/A None This is an Target was
public popular lectures | popular lectures |per annum annual target |adjusted
lectures | presented to presented. of public and will be due to
delivered. lectures. achieved at  |lockdown
31 March 2019. year end. and closure
of the
No planned  |Museum.
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of 24 21 15 1 14 Targets were |Target was
lectures academic academic per annum reduced due |adjusted
delivered |lectures / lectures / public to COVID and |due to
to practicals were | practicals were | lectures / the Museum  |lockdown
students | presented to presented to practicals and there and closure
registered | students by students delivered. were no of the
at Higher tfargets on Museum.
Education | 31 march 2019. | 31 March 2020. plenzelen
Institutions. the date of
re-tabling.
No of 143 31 30 6 24 The planned |Target not
arficles  |research articles | publicationsin  |per annum target is revised.
published | published in peer-reviewed | articles reporfed
inpeer | peerreviewed | journdls. published in against
reviewed |journals to peer performance
journails. reviewed until date of
31 March 2019. journals. re-tabling.
No of new New Target. 5 1 4 The planned |Target not
animal or new target is re- revised.
plant or species ported
fossil described. against per-
species formance until
described. date of re-
tabling.
No of 56 56 50 5 45 The planned |Target not
reviews  |reviews of re- reviews of re- reviews targetisre-  |revised.
conduc- |search articles, | search artficles/ |conducted. ported
ted. reports, propo- reports/ propo- against per-
sals, theses and | sals/ manage- formance until
management ment plans were date of re-
plans were undertaken by tabling.
undertaken by
31 March 2019. 31 March 2020.
No of Compiled 4 Compiled 11 5 0 5 The planned |Target not
Technical |cultural technical | CRM, EIA, CRM/ EIA/ target is revised.
Reports/ |reports, or biomonitoring Bio reported
Impact environmental and Site reports | monitoring against per-
Assess- assessment by and site formance until
ments reports by reports. date of re-
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets
conduc- tabling.
ted by 31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020.
Museum Due to lock-
Scientists. downl no new
projects could
be registered.
No of new| A total of 3 new | A total of 12 new |4 0 4 The planned |Target not
internation | collaborative collaborative new target is revised.
al and research projects | research internatio- reported
national | were established | projects nal and against per-
collabora- | by established by national formance until
tive collabora- date of re-
projects. |31 March 2019. |31 March 2020. | five tabling.
projects.
Due to lock-
down, no new
projects could
be registered.
Produc- |Culna 73 Culna 74 Culna 0 1 This is an Target not
fion of published (hardcopy issue). | 1 hardcopy annual target [revised.
CULNA. (1 issue). issue. and will be
achieved at
year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
34 12 10 2 Target was
online articles. online adjusted
Culna due to
arficles. lockdown
and closure
of the
Museum.
Produc- |Indago Vol 34 Indago Vol 35 6 N/A None This is an Target not
fion of Numbers 1 and 2 | published and Indago annual target |revised.
INDAGO. |were published 1 online issue. online and will be
during the year articles. achieved at
(2 issues). year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
Staff 8 8 8 6 2 One Target
serving on | Professional staff | Professional staff | Professional additional revised due
the serving on serving on staff serving professional to
Executive |committees of committees of  |on commit- body repre-  |lockdown
of professional professional tees of pro- sentation. and closure
Professio- | bodies to bodies as on fessional of the
nal bodies. Museum.
bodies. |31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020.
Progress | Progress on 86% | Progress on 95% | Progress on 0.00% None This is an Target not
on of total number | of total research |70% of annual target [revised.
research | of research projects research and will be
projects | projects by achieved. projects per achieved at
during the annum. year end.
year. 31 March 2019.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date

of re-tabling.
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PROGRAMME 2: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Programme 2: Public Engagement

Purpose

Programme purpose: to inform, consult, involve, collaborate with and empower the Museum'’s
stakeholders in the diverse cultural and natural heritage.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable)

Sub - Programme Purpose

1. Marketing To promote a greater awareness and better understanding of South Africa’s diverse
cultural and natural heritage through relevant formal and informal activities and
exhibitions.

2. Public Educational Programmes To provide informative and enjoyable educational experiences through relevant
formal and informal activities and public outreach programmes, thereby
contributing fo promoting a greater awareness and better understanding of South
Africa's diverse cultural and natural heritage.

Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for

Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs

2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /

re-tabling | achievement Annual

30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets

Outcome |Permao- New Target. Permanent N/A None This is an Target not

1: nent Exhibition annual target [revised.

Museum |Exhibition Plan is and will be

Exhibitions |Plan is reviewed achieved at

are reviewed. and year end.

inclusive, approved

interactive by CEO No planned

educatio- and quartely tar-

nal and Council. get on date

entertain- of re-tabling.

ing.

No of New Target. 1 N/A None This is an Target not
inclusive inclusive annual target [revised.
perma- permanent and will be
nent exhibition at achieved at
exhibi- the year end.
fions. National
Museum. No planned
quartely tar-
getf on date
of re-tabling.
New Target 2019: | 3 out of 7 Text of N/A None This is an Target not
Multilingual (3 temporary Exhibitions annual target [revised.
languages) text | exhibitions at NM IN 3 and will be
in various formats | displayed languages. achieved at
provided in all mulfilingual fext. year end.
new temporary
exhibitions No p|0nned
(internall). quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of New Target. Hosting of 2 None No deviation. |Target not
Special celebrations revised.
Days for:
celebra- - Womens
ted with Day
commu- - Youth Day
nifies. - Interatio-
nal Day of
Persons with
Disabilities
(including
virtual cele-
brations
during lock-
down).
Conduct |New Target. First project: Conduct a N/A None This is an Target not
a facilities Send out tender. |facilities annual target [revised.
audit. Second project: | audit with and will be
Consultants busy | DPW/DSAC achieved at
with design. year end.
Third project:
Contractor No planned
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targeis
appointed. quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.

New Target. 50% N/A None This is an Target not
implemen- annual target [revised.
tation of and will be
UAMP achieved at
projects year end.
funded by
DSAC and No planned
DPW. quartely tar-

getf on date
of re-tabling.
No of New Target. 50 000 N/A None This is an Targets
visitors to to annual target |were
the Oliewenhuis and will be reduced
National (lockdown). achieved at  |due fo
Museum year end. COVID.
and
satellites. No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
Total of Total of 100 000 N/A None This is an Targets
145 958 visitors fo | 119 890 visitors fo |to National annual target |were
the National the National Museum and will be reduced
Museum and its | Museum, its and achieved at  |due fo
satellites by satellites and balance of year end. COVID.
31 March 2019. outreach pro- satellites
grammes during | (lockdown) No planned
20] 9/2020 quorfe|y tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
Celebrate 2 Host 1 None No deviation. |Target not
excellen- Living heritage Free State revised.
ce in the events hosted. | Young Arfist
Heritage Competi-
Sector. fion.
Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Tcrgeis
Outcome |No of Supervision was | 9 2 4 -2 The Museum |Target not
2: PHDs and | provided for é post-grad per annum was revised.
Opportu- |Masters post-graduate students PHDs and approached
nities students | students to supervised. Masters to supervise
created |supervised students more
for unem- 31 March 2019. supervised. students.
ployed
learners to
gain
workplace
skills and
provision
of
curriculum
based
learning
support to
schools.
No of New Target. 1 0 1 Advert was Target not
post doc per annum issued and no |revised.
opportu- of post doc suitable
nities opportuni- applicant
provided. ties provi- applied.
ded.
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targeis
No of One full-time 2 10 0 10 This is an Target not
internships |intern (WESSA) full-time FET internships annual target [revised.
provided. |was hosted and | internships. provided and will be
received fraining per annum. achieved at
year end.
to 31 March 2019.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of 5 5 N/A None This is an Target not
vacation FET WIL learners | per annum annual target |revised.
work hosted during vacation and will be
experien- vacation by work expe- achieved at
ce oppor- rience year end.
tunities 31 March 2020.  |opportu-
provided nities No planned
for provided quartely tar-
learners. for learners. get on date
of re-tabling.
No of 520 516 400 lessons N/A None This is an Target was
schools educational Guided tours and guided annual target |adjusted
groups lessons & guided | and lessons fours school and will be due to
receive tours presented presented by groups achieved at  |lockdown
curriculum |to receive cur- year end. and closure
based 31 March 2019. 31 March 2020, |riculum of the
lessons. based les- No planned Museum.
sons by NM quartely tar-
and 100 by get on date
Oliewenhuis of re-tabling.
5 5 5 N/A None This is an Target not
educator training | Educator Educator annual target |revised.
workshops workshops fraining and will be
presented to presented. workshops. achieved at
31 March 2019. year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
3721 1807 500 100 400 Target not
educational educational educatio- revised.
booklets booklets nal bro-
distributed by distributed by chures
distributed
31 March 2019. | 31 March 2020. | by
Oliewenhuis
Participa- N/A None No planned  |Target not
fionin 2 quarterly tar-  [revised.
career get on date
guidance of re-tabling.
initiatives.
No of 36 36 NM to N/A None No planned Target not
Mobile Mobile Museum | Mobile Museum  |conduct 20 quarterly tar-  [revised.
museum | frips undertaken | frips undertaken, |mobile get on date
frips inclu- | to 31 March 2019, | of which 18 were |museum of re-tabling.
ding rural |including 23 to rural areas. trips inclu-
schools. rural areas. ding rural
schools.
New Target. Oliewenhuis N/A None No planned  |Target not
to conduct quarterly tar-  [revised.
5 mobile getf on date
museum of re-tabling.
frips inclu-
ding rural
schools.
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targeis
No of 10 10 8 N/A None No deviation. |Target was
school holiday art Holiday Art school adjusted
holiday  |workshops pre- | Workshops held | holiday due fo
workshops | sented, accom- | accommoda- workshops lockdown
provided. |modating 93 ting 153 provided. and closure
participants by participants. of the
Museum.
to 31 March 2019.
ArtBank |No of 60 100 N/A None No planned Target not
becomes |artworks artworks artworks quarterly tar- |revised.
financially |pur- purchased for purchased. get on date
sustain- chased, National ArtBank of re-tabling.
able to leased (NAB) collections
support and sold. by
the visual 31 March 2020.
arts
economy.

New Target. 20 N/A None No planned Target not
artworks quarterly tar-  [revised.
leased and get on date
/or sold per of re-tabling.
annum.

No of 2 3 2 N/A None No planned  |Target was
ArtBank | National Art Bank | National Art ArtBank quarterly tar- | adjusted
Exhibitions | temporary exhibi- | Bank temporary | Exhibition to gefondate |duefo
held tions hosted exhibitions be held of re-fabling. |lockdown
during the year. | hosted per year. |annually. and closure
of the
Museum.

New Target. 1000 N/A None No planned |Target was
people quarterly tar- | adjusted
attend geftondate |dueto
ArtBank of re-tabling. |lockdown
exhibifions and closure
per annum. of the

Museum.
No of New Target. 5 0 None Researcher Target not
research research or resigned. revised.
or popular popular
articles articles pu-
published blished
about about the
ArtBank ArtBankSA
collections collections.
Amount R 50k per N/A None No planned Target not
of income annum quarterly tar-  [revised.
generate income getf on date
d by the generated. of re-tabling.
ArtBankSA
ArtBank ArtBank N/A None No planned  |Target not
Sales and Sales and quarterly tar- |revised.
Marketing Marketing get on date
Strategy Strategy by of re-tabling.
and MOU April 2020.
with DSAC
MOU with N/A None No planned Target not
DSAC by quarterly tar-  [revised.
Dec 2020. get on date

of re-tabling.

PROGRAMME 3: COMPLIANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Programme 3: Compliance and Administration

Purpose

To provide the necessary professional support and compliance services to ensure the achievement of the
Museum'’s primary objectives of carrying out quality research, expanding and managing diverse heritage
collections and communicating this to all, through educational programmes, exhibitions and publications,
to emphasise the importance of this diverse heritage to the South African nation.
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Sub Programmes (if Applicable)

Sub - Programme Purpose

Support Services

mandate.

To provide support through human resources, information technology, security, risk
management, supply chain management to enable the Museum to achieve its

Compliance Services

To provide support to the Museum to ensure compliance with legislation, guidelines,
frameworks to avoid audit.

Findings.
Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target fo / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targeis
Improved |Achieve | Unqualified Unqualified Achieved N/A No This is an Target not
gover- an ungua-| audit report audit report for  |unqualified deviation. |annual target [revised.
nance of |lified audit | achieved for 2019/2020 audit for and will be
the report. 2017/2018. financial year. the 2019/20 achieved at
Museum. financial year end.
year.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of staff New Target. 3 N/A None This is an Target not
fraining staff annual target [revised.
opportu- fraining and will be
nities fo opportuni- achieved at
support fies to sup- year end.
gover- port gover-
nance. nance No planned
(including quartely tar-
virtual). get on date
of re-tabling.
No of New Target. All policies N/A None This is an Target not
policies reviewed in annual target [revised.
reviewed. a 3 year and will be
cycle. achieved at
year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
Informa- New Target. Investment N/A None This is an Target not
fion innew IT annual target [revised.
fechnolo- infrastruc- and will be
gy gover- ture. achieved at
nance year end.
enhanced
with No planned
invest- quartely tar-
ment in T get on date
infrastruc- of re-tabling.
fure and
relevant
policies.
New IT policies to 1 N/A None This is an Target not
be drafted by annual target [revised.
31 March 2021. and will be
achieved at
year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
Perfor- New Target. Quarterly 100% None No deviafion. |Target not
mance performan- revised.
and ce reports
Financial subT(niTTed
- on time in-
reporting. cluding
lockdown
revised
dates.
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Outcome | Output Audited Actual Audited Actual Planned Actual Deviation Reason for | Reasons for
Performance Performance Annual Achievement from deviations revision to
Target planned the Outputs
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 target to / Output
until date of actual indicators /
re-tabling | achievement Annual
30 June 2020 2020/2021 Targets
Perfor- New Target. Annual N/A None This is an Target not
mance report annual target [revised.
and submitted and will be
Financial on time achieved at
reporting. including year end.
lockdown
revised No planned
dates. quartely tar-
get on date
of re-tabling.
No of New Target. 100% on all 100% None No deviatfion. |Target not
disciplina- matters revised.
ry actions identified to
taken for implement
non-com- conse-
pliance quence
with PFMA manage-
and ment.
policy.
Risk New Target. Risk Ma- N/A = This is an Target not
Manage- nagement annual target |revised.
ment is Registers and will be
imple- (Operatio- achieved at
mented. nal, Strate- year end.
gic and
Fraud Risk No p|onned
Registers) quartely tar-
updated get on date
quarterly. of re-tabling.
New Target. Annual Risk N/A - This is an Target not
Treatment annual target [revised.
Plan. and will be
achieved at
year end.
No planned
quartely tar-
getf on date
of re-tabling.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

BY PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE
APR POST-RETABLING OF 30 JUNE 2020

SUBMITTED FOR AUDIT DRAFT ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE REPORT OF NATIONAL
MUSEUM 2020/2021

The following table reflects the annual performance against the revised targets of the re-tabled APP.

PROGRAMME 1: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Programme 1: Business Development

Purpose

Programme purpose:
*To properly manage and maintain the natural and cultural heritage and art collections;
*Serve as centres for promotion of research and development;
eEnsure that the Museum remains a centre of research excellence by publishing research output in
accredited scientific journals, often collaborating with other national or international researchers; and
e Building human and research capacity.
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Sub Programmes (if Applicable)

Sub - Programme Purpose

Curation and Conservation of Collections

To collect and conserve materials and objects of natural and cultural heritage
relevant to the disciplines of the Natfional Museum, which represent an important
part of the collective national estate. In addition, to give attention to expanding
collections where appropriate fo include materials, objects and information to
promote an enhanced sense of national pride in the diverse cultural and natural

heritage shared by all South Africans.

Research and Information Management

To undertake research according to ethical standards to produce high quality results
relating fo the various research disciplines of the National Museum and to
communicate the relevance and meaning of these results, including contributing
data to current important debates and frends of research, to as broad an audience
as possible. Research programmes will incorporate aspects relevant to promoting a
greater awareness of the importance and role of previously marginalized
communities in contributing to South Africa as a nation.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements.

Output Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
2.1.1. No of Objects/specimens 38 255 specimens 5000 27 363 (+22 363) Targets were
new heritage | (“material unts”) added to | (“material units”) new heritage reduced due to
items added | natural historycollections: added to natural items added COVID and the
fo the n= 12 000 history collections. to natural Museum mana-
collection and science ged to exceed
digitised. collections. these revised
Objects/specimens 4036 objects 500 new 748 (+248) Z?é%fekisei?éeggle
(“material unts”) added to | (“material units”) heritage to work during
cultural history (& cultural/ | added to cultural items added lock down
humanities) collections. history (& cultural/ to human ’
n= 1200 humanities) science
collections. collections.
R150 000 spent on art R250 000 spent on 2 new heri- 18 (+16) The Museum
collections by art collection by tage items received an
31 March 2020. 31 March 2020. added fo unexpected
Oliewenhuis donation of
Art Museum artworks.
21.2.% Complete annual Annual collections Collections 100% None No deviation.
compliance collections audit by audit successfully Department
with 31 March 2020. completed by audit Heri-
Conservation 31 March 2020. tage Collec-
Policy and tfion for com-
GRAP. pliance with
Collections
Policy.
New Target. Digitisation 100% None No deviation.
Policy
finalised.
No of loans of | 30 new outgoing or A fotal of 22 new 10 new 49 (+39) Targets were
collections incoming loans of incoming or out- outgoing reduced due to
items. collection material going loans of loans. COVID and the
annually. collection material Museum mana-
for the period. ged to exceed
No of re- New Target. 5research 21 (+16) Ig?se revised
. . gets due to
search studies qud[es on staff being able
cqnqlucfed on emshng to work during
existing collections. lock down
collections. ’
No of popular | 35 popular articles 52 popular articles 30 popular 45 (+15)
research published per annum. published by research
articles 31 March 2020. articles
published. published.
Develop a New Target. Develop a 100% None No deviation.
policy for policy for
ethical re- ethical re-
search at the search at the
Museum. Museum.
Ethical clearance for alll Ethical clearance When nee- 100% None No deviafion.
new registered research confirmed for all ded research
projects confirmed new registered re- projects
annually by search projects. (25 |have ethical
31 March 2020. projects -100% ethi- | clearance.

cal clearance).
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Output Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of re- New Target. 5research 6 (+1) Many grant
search grants grants awar- applications
awarded to ded to are made and
Museum Museum it is difficult to
Scientists. scientists. accurately pre-
dict this target.
No of NRF 5 NRF rated museum 2 NRF rated scientists |2 NRF rated 2 None No deviation.
rated scientists at as at scientists.
scientists. 31 March 2020. 31 March 2020.
No of New Target. 5 per annum. 21 (+16) Targets were
research reduced due to
fieldtrips COVID and the
conducted. Museum
No of re- 30 Conference/workshop | 40 Conference/ 5research 11 (+6) g]x?:g%%i?\etge
search papers | presentations per annum. | workshop presen- papers or revised targets
of posters de- fations given by posters de- due fo staff
livered at re- 31 March 2020. livered at re- being able to
search confe- search con- work during
rences. ferences. lock down.
No of public 35 popular lectures 36 lectures 5 per annum 9 (+4)
lectures presented per annum. presented. of public
delivered. lectures.
No of lectures | 20 lectures/practicals. 21 academic lec- 5 per annum 9 (+4)
delivered to fures/practicals public lectu-
students regis- were presented to res/ practi-
tered at High- students by cals delive-
er Education 31 March 2020. red (Higher
Institutions. Edu-cation
Institutions).
No of articles | 30 publications in peer- 31 publications in 30 per 44 (+14)
published in reviewed journals per peer-reviewed annum arfi-
peer reviewed | annum. journals. cles publis-
journals. hed in peer
reviewed
journals.
No of new New Target. 5 new 20 (+15)
animal or species
plant or fossil described.
species de-
scribed.
No of reviews | 50 reviews of research arti- | 56 reviews of re- 50 reviews 74 (+24)
conducted. cles/reports/proposals/ma | search articles/ re- conducted.
nagement plans by ports/proposals/
31 March 2020. management plans
were undertaken by
31 March 2020.
No of Tech- Compile 20 CRM,EIA, Compiled 11 CRM, 5 CRM/ EIA/ 2 (-3) The Museum is
nical Reports/ | biomonitoring and site EIA, biomonitoring Bio moni- not able to pre-
Impact reports by and site reports by toring and dict the number
Assessments 31 March 2020. 31 March 2020. site reports. of requests that
conducted by we receive
Museum annually.
Scientists.
No of new 4 New collaborative A total of 12 new 4 new 7 (+3) Increased inte-
international | research projects collaborative re- international rest in collabo-
and national | established by search projects and national rations with
collaborative | 31 March 2020. established by collaborative National Mu-
projects. 31 March 2020. projects. seum Scientists
resulted in the
target being
exceeded.
Production of | 1 hardcopy issue per year. | Culna 74 Culna 1 1 - No deviation.
CULNA. (hardcopy issue). hardcopy
issue.
12 online articles. 34 online articles. 20 online 37 (+17) Museum
Culna scientist worked
articles. throughout
lockdown.
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Output Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
Production of | 1 Hardcopy issue for Indago Vol 35 Indago 2 1 (-1) Delays in the
INDAGO. Indago and é online issues | published and 1 online review process
per year. online issue. articles. meant we
could only
publish 1 article.
Staff serving 8 Professional staff serving | 8 Professional staff 5 professio- 6 (+1) One additional
on the Execu- | on committees of serving on commit- | nal staff ser- professional
tive of professional bodies. tees of professional |ving on com- body repre-
Professional bodies as on mittees of sentation.
bodies. 31 March 2020. professional
bodies.
Progress on re- | Progress on 60% of total Progress on 95% of Progress on 90.8%
search pro- number of research total research 70% of re-
jects during projects by 31 March 2020. | projects achieved. |search pro-
the year. jects per
annum.

Linking performance with budgets

The links between the Museum’s budget and its core programmes are indicated in the table below:

2019/2020 2020/2021
Programme/ Budget Actual (Over)/Under Budget Actual (Over)/Under
activity/ Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
objective
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Business 13 642 14034 (392) 12831 20 862 (8031)
Development.

Total 13 642 14034 (392) 12 831 20 862 (8 031)

PROGRAMME 2: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Programme 2: Public Engagement

Purpose Programme purpose: to inform, consult, involve, collaborate with and empower the Museum'’s

stakeholders in the diverse cultural and natural heritage.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable) Sub - Programme Purpose

1. Marketing To promote a greater awareness and better understanding of South Africa’s diverse
cultural and natural heritage through relevant formal and informal activities and
exhibitions.

2. Public Educational Programmes | To provide informative and enjoyable educational experiences through relevant
formal and informal activities and public outreach programmes, thereby
contributing fo promoting a greater awareness and befter understanding of South
Africa's diverse cultural and natural heritage.

Outcome 1: Museum Exhibitions are inclusive, interactive, educational and entertaining
Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021

Permanent New Target. Permanent 1 None No deviation.

Exhibition Plan Exhibition

is reviewed. Plan is

reviewed
and appro-
ved by CEO
and Council.

No of inclusive New Target. 1 inclusive 1 None No deviation.

permanent permanent

exhibitions. exhibition at

the National
Museum.
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Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of inclusive | Multilingual (3 languages) | 3 out of 7 temporary |Text of 100% None No deviation.
permanent text in various formats exhibitions displayed |Exhibitions at
exhibitions. provided in all new tem- multilingual text. NM IN 3
porary exhibitions languages.
(intfernal).
No of Special New Target. Hosting of 11 None The Museum
Days cele- celebrations managed fo
brated with for: Womens exceed these
communities. Day/Youth targets due to
Day/ Interna- staff being able
tional Day of fo work during
Persons with lock down and
Disabilities. virtual celebro-
(including fions.
virtual cele-
brations
during lock-
down).
Conduct a Appoint a project First project:Send out |Conduct a 1 None No deviation.
facilities audit. | manager and implement | tender. Second facilities au-
project as per approved project: Consultants | dit with DPW/
budget. busy with design. DSAC.
Third project: Con-
fractor appointed.
New Target. 50% imple- 70% (+20%) Confractors
mentation of were able to
UAMP pro- finish some
jects funded projects during
by DSAC and lockdown.
DPW.
No of visitors 1 000 to 4815 (+3815) No deviation.
to the Oliewenhuis
National (lockdown).
Museum and
satellites.
200 000 Visitors to National | Total of 119 890 visi- |1 000 to 1 489 (+489) Targets were re-
Museum and its satellites fors o the National  |National duced due to
during 2019/2020. Museum, its satellites |Museum and COVID and the
and outreach balance of Museum mana-
programmes during | satellites ged to exceed
2019/2020. (lockdown). these revised
targets due to
the Museum
opening during
lockdown.
Celebrate 2 Living heritage events 2 Living heritage Host Free 1 None No deviation.

excellence in
the Heritage
Sector.

hosted.

events hosted.

State Young
Artist
Competition.

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements.

Outcome 2: Opportunities created for unemployed learners to gain workplace skills and provision of curriculum based learning
support to schools.

Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of PHDs 4 post-grad students 9 post-grad students |2 per annum 6 (+4) The Museum
and Masters supervised annually. supervised. PHDs and was ap-
students Masters stu- proached to
supervised. dents super- supervise more
vised. students.
No of post New Target. 1 per annum 0 (-1) Advert was
doc oppor- of post doc issued and no
funities opportunities suitable appli-
provided. provided. cant applied.
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Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of 2 full-time FET infernships by | 2 full-time FET 10 internships 14 (+4) Covid related
internships 31 March 2020. infernships. provided per infern appoint-
provided. annum. ments allowed
us to exceed
the target.
No of vaca- 5 FET WIL learners hosted 5 FET WIL learners 5 per annum 3 (-2) Rain and floo-
fion work ex- | during vacation by hosted during vacation ding resulted in
perience 31 March 2020. vacation by work expe- cancellation
opportunities 31 March 2020. rience op- from learners.
provided for portunities
learners. provided for
learners.
No of schools | 510 Guided tours and 516 Guided tours 50 schools re- 28 (-22) The school year
groups re- lessons presented per and lessons ceive lessons was disrupted
ceive annum. presented by and guided (National and despite
curriculum 31 March 2020. tours (curri- | Museum = 15: schools visits
based lessons. culum ba- Oliewenhuis being allowed,
sed) by Na- =13). the schools
tional Mu- showed very
seum and 10 low interest.
by Oliewen-
huis
5 Educator workshops 5 Educator work- 5 educator 5 None No deviation.
presented per annum. shops presented. fraining
workshops.
300 educational booklets 1 807 educational 500 educa- 937 (+437) Increased
distributed per year. booklets distributed  |tional bro- opportunity to
by 31 March 2020. chures distri- distribute.
buted by
Oliewenhuis.
Participation 0 None No deviation.
in O career
guidance
inifiatives.
No of Mobile | 20 Mobile Museum trips 36 Mobile Museum NM to con- 0 None No deviation.
museum trips | undertaken (af least to 8 frips undertaken, of  |duct 0 mo-
including rural | rural schools) by which 18 were rural | bile museum
schools. 31 March 2020. areas. trips inclu-
ding rural
schools.
New Target. Oliewenhuis 0 None No deviation.
to conduct 0
mobile mu-
seum ftrips
including
rural schools.
No of school 10 Holiday Art Workshops 10 Holiday Art 2 school 2 None No deviation.
holiday held per annum, each Workshops held holiday
workshops accommodating 10 accommodating workshops
provided. participants. 153 participants. provided.
Outcome: ArtBank becomes financially sustainable to support the visual arts economy
Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of artworks | Purchase 50 artworks for 60 artworks pur- 100 artworks 210 (+110) An additional
purchased, National ArtBank (NAB) by | chased for National |purchased. funding window
leased and 31 March 2020. ArtBank (NAB) was opened
sold. collections by 31 during lock-
March 2020. down.
New Target. 5 artworks 6 (+1) Targets were re-
leased and duced due fo
/or sold per COVID and the
annum. Museum ma-

naged to ex-
ceed these
revised targets
by a small
margin.
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Outcome Planned Target Actual Achievement Planned Actual Deviation from | Comments on
indicator Target Achievement| planned target deviations
to Actual
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 | 2020/2021 | Achievement
for 2020/2021
No of ArtBank | 1 National Art Bank 3 National Art Bank |1 ArtBank No deviations.
Exhibitions temporary exhibition tfemporary Exhibition to
held. hosted per year. exhibitions hosted be held
per year. annually.
New Target. 500 people 1428 (+928) The exhibition
attend attracted more
ArtBank exhi- than expected
bitions per number of
annum. people.
No of re- New Target. 5research or None No deviations.
search or popular arti-
popular arti- cles publish-
cles published ed about the
about ArtBank ArtBankSA
collections. collections.
Amount of R 50k per R10 800 (-R40 200k) Less than ex-
income ge- annum pected inferest
nerated by income shown in lea-
the generated. sing or pur-
ArtBankSA. chasing art-
works during
lockdown.
ArtBank Sales ArtBank Sales None ArtBank were
and and not able to
Marketing Marketing finalise the
Strategy and Strategy by strategy.
MOU with April 2020.
DSAC.
MOU with None No deviation.
DSAC by
Dec 2020.

Linking performance with budgets

The links between the Museum's budget andits core programmes are indicated in the table below:

2019/2020 2020/2021
Programme/ Budget Actual (Over)/Under Budget Actual (Over)/Under
activity/ Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
objective
R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R’000 R’000

Programme 2: 1766 2385 (619) 1623 802 821
Public Engagement

Total 1766 2 385 (619) 1623 802 821

PROGRAMME 3: COMPLIANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Programme 3: Compliance and Administration

Purpose

To provide the necessary professional support and compliance services to ensure the achievement of the
Museum'’s primary objectives of carrying out quality research, expanding and managing diverse heritage
collections and communicating this to all, through educational programmes, exhibitions and publications,
to emphasise the importance of this diverse heritage to the South African nation.

Sub Programmes (if Applicable)

Sub - Programme Purpose

Support Services

To provide support through human resources, information technology, security, risk
management, supply chain management to enable the Museum to achieve its
mandate.

Compliance Services

Findings.

To provide support fo the Museum to ensure compliance with legislation, guidelines,
frameworks to avoid audit.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements.

Outcome: Improved governance of the Museum

Outcome indicator

Actual
Achievement

Planned Target

Actual
Achievement

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual Achievement

Comment on deviations

Treatment Plan.

2019/2020 2020/2021 2020/2021 for 2020/2021
Achieve an Unquadlified audit | Unqualified audit | Achieved None No deviations.
unqualified audit report achieved report for unqualified audit
report. for 2018/2019 2019/2020 for the 2019/20
financial year. financial year. financial year
No of staff fraining | New Target. 3 staff training op- 3 None No deviations.
opportunities to portunities to sup-
support gover- porf governance
nance. (including virtual).
No of policies New Target. All policies 100% None No deviations.
reviewed. reviewed in a 3
year cycle.
Information tech- New Target. Investment in new 1 None No deviations.
nology governan- IT infrastructure.
ce enhanced with
investment in IT New IT policies to 1 None No deviations.
infrastructure and be drafted by
relevant policies. 31 March 2021.
Performance and |New Target. Quarterly perfor- 100% None No deviations.
Financial reporting. mance reports
submitted on time
including lock-
down revised
dates.
New Target. Annual report 100% None No deviations.
submitted on time
including lock-
down revised
dates.
No of disciplinary New Target. 100% on all 100% None No deviations.
actions taken for matters identified
non-compliance to implement
with PFMA and consequence
policy. management.
Risk Management |New Target. Risk Management 100% - No deviations.
is implemented Registers (Opera-
tional, Strategic
and Fraud Risk
Registers) upda-
ted quarterly.
New Target. Annual Risk 1 - No deviations.

Linking performance with budgets

The links between the Museum'’s budget and its core programmes are indicated in the table below:

2019/2020 2020/2021
Programme/ Budget Actual (Over)/Under Budget Actual (Over)/Under
activity/ Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
objective
R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Programme 3: 1109 986 123 988 789 199
Compliance and
Administration

Total 1109 986 123 988 789 199
Summary

Achievement Status

% of total Performance Indicators

Achieved/Overachieved 89,06
Partially Achieved 7.81
Not Achieved 3,13
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MUSEUM PUBLICATIONS
2020/2021

Scientific Publications by National Museum staff 2020/2021

Allio, R., Tilak, M., Scornavacca, C., Avenant, N.L., Kitchener, A.C,,
Corre, E., Nabholz, B and Delsuc, F. (2021) High quality carnivore
genomes using hybrid assembly from roadkill enable species
delimitation in aardwolf and bat-eared fox. eLife 2021;10:€63167.
DOI: https://doi.org/10.7554/elife.63167.

Archer, W. (2021) Carrying capacity, population density and the later
Pleistocene expression of backed artefact manufacturing
traditions in Africa. Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society
B.

Archer, W., Aldeics, V., & McPherron, S. P. (2020) Whatis ‘insitu’e Areply
toHarmand et al. (2015) Journal of Human Evolution, 142, 102740.

Archer, W., Djakovic, ., Brenet, M., Bourguignon, L., Soressi, M.,
Presnyakova, D., McPherron, S.P. (2021) Quantifying hominin
flaking tfechnologies with 3D shape analysis. Journal of Human
Evolution.

Bates, M.F. & Wilson, B. (2020) First record of a Cape Cobra Naja nivea
(Repfilia: Squamata) preying on an aardwolf Proteles cristatus
(Mammalia: Carnivora). African Journal of Ecology.
DOI:101111/0je.12792.

Bates, M.F. & Josling, N. (2020) First record of a pholcid spider
(Arachnida:Araneae) feeding on areptile in South Africa. African
Journal of Ecology.DOI:10.1111/aje.12835.

Bates, M.F. and Bauer, A.M. (2020) A tribute to William Roy Branch (1946 -
2018): Doyen of African Herpetology. African Journal of
Herpetology 69(1):1-11.

Bates, M.F. and Bauer, A.M. (2020) Will Roy Branch (1946-2018): Doyen
of African Herpetology: Bibliography, taxonomic discoveries and
patronyms. African Journal of Herpetology 69(1):119-150.

Bergman, D.L, Avenant, N.L., Bodenchuk, M.J. & Steenkamp, E. (2020)
Developing Alternatfives to Protect Domestic Sheep from
Predation in South Africa. Proceedings, 29th Vertebrate Pest
Conference (D.M.Woods, Ed.). Pp.1-7.ISSN0507-6773.

Botha, J. (2020) The paleobiology and paleoecology of South African
Lystrosaurus. Peer) 8:e10408. DOI: doi.org/10.7717 /peerj.10408.

Botha, J. and Smith, R. M. H. (2020) Biostratigraphy of the Lystrosaurus
declivis Assemblage Zone in R. M. H. Smith (ed.), Karoo
biostratigraphy. Special Issue. South African Journal of Geology
123(2):207-216.

Botha, J., Huttenlocker, A.K., Smith, R.M.H., Prevec, R., Viglietti, P. and
Modesto, S.P. (2020) New geochemical and palaeontological
data from the Permian-Triassic boundary in the South African
Karoo Basin fest the synchronicity of terrestrial and marine
extinctions. Palaeogeography, Palaeoclimatology,
Palaeoecology. 540: 109467. DOIl: doi.org/10.1016/ j.palaeo.
2019.109467.

Chazan, M., Berna, F., Brink, J., Ecker, M., Holt, S., Porat, N., Thorp, J.L.,
Horwitz, L.K. (2020) Archaeology, Paleoenvironment and
Chronology of the Early Middle Stone Age Component of
Wonderwerk Cave in the Interior of Southern Africa. Journal of
Paleolithic Archaeology, 3(6).

Daniel, G.M., Davis, A.L.V., Sole, C.L., Scholtz, C.H. (2020) Evolutionary
history and eco-climatic diversification in southern African dung
beeftle Sisyphus. Journal of Biogeography, 47,2698-2713.

Daniel, G.M., Deschodt, C.M., Davis, A.L.V., Sole, C.L. (2020) The
enigmatic dung beetle genus Stiptopodius Harold, 1871
(Coleoptera: Scarabaeidae: Scarabaeinae) revisited: new
species descriptions from southern Africa. Zootaxa, 4763(3),
394-404.
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Du Bruyn, D. & Oelofse, M. (2020) “The idea of beautifying the
surroundings”: Bloemfontein’s (Mangaung) Batho location a
“gardenlocation”? (ca. 1918-1939), New Contree 84: 30-56.

Ermilov, S.G. & Hugo-Coetzee, E.A. (2020) A new species of oribatid
mites of the genus Galumna from South Africa. Acarina, 28(1),
17-22.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. (2020) A new species
of oribatid mites of the subgenus Lanceoppia (Bicristoppia)
(Acari: Oribatida: Oppiidae) from South Africa. Zoosystematica
Rossica, 29(2), 328-334.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. (2020) Contribution to
the knowledge of the oribatid mite genus Setoppia (Acari,
Oribatida, Oppiidae), with a new species from South Africa.
Acarologia, 60 (4), 892-902.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. (2021) A new species
of Scheloribates (Acari, Oribatida, Scheloribatidae) from South
Africa. Ecologica Montenegrina, 39, 86-91.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. (2021) New species of
oribatid mites of the subfamily Brachioppiinae (Acari, Oribatida,
Oppiidae) from Hogsback, South Africa. Systematic and Applied
Acarology.26(4), 684-697.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. (2021) Three new
species of oribatid mites of the family Galumnidae (Acari,
Oribatida) from South Africa. Zootaxa, 4920(1), 091-100.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A. Khaustov V.A. (2021)
New faunistic and taxonomic data on oribatid mites (Acari,
Oribatida) inhabiting soil and termite nests in the Golden Gate
Highlands Natfional Park (eastern South Africa). International
Journal of Acarology, 47(2), 152-158.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A., Khaustov V.A. (2020)
Ontogenetic instars of Phyllhermannia goldengatensis sp.nov.
(Acari, Oribatida, Hermanniidae) from South Africa. Systematic
and Applied Acarology, 25(11),2115-2130.

Ermilov, S.G., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Khaustov A.A., Khaustov V.A. (2021)
New faunistic data on oribatid mites (Acari, Oribatida) inhabiting
the soil and fermite nests in the Franklin Game Reserve,
Bloemfontein, South Africa. Zoologicheskii Zhurnal, 100(4),
374-384.

Ganem, G., Dufour, C.M.S., Avenant, N.L., Caminade, P., Eiseb, S.J.,
Tougard, C. and Pillay, N. (2020) An update on the distribution
and diversification of Rhabdomys sp. (Muridae, Rodentia). J.
Vertebr. Biol. 69(2): 1-17.DOI: 10.25225/jvb.20013.

Holt, S., Horwitz, LK., Wilson, B., Codron, D. (2021) Leopard tortoise
Stigmochelys pardalis (Bell, 1928) mortality caused by electric
fences in cenfral South Africa and its impact on tortoise
demography. African Journal of Herpetology, 70 (1), 32-52.

Joharchi, O., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Ermilov, S.G., Khaustov, A.A. (2020) A
new unusual species of Gaeolaelaps Evans and Till
(Mesostigmata: Laelapidae) from South Africa. Annales
Zoologici, 70(3), 439-447.

Joharchi, O., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Ermilov, S.G., Khaustov, A.A. (2020)
Redescription of Hypoaspisella spiculifer (Berlese, 1918) comb.
nov. (Acari: Mesostigmata: Laelapidae) from South Africa.
Acarina, 28(1), 55-64.

Khaustov, A.A., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Ermilov S.G. (2020) Two new
myrmecophilous Scutacarus (Acari: Scutacaridae) from South
Africa. Annales Zoologici, 70(3), 397-407.

Khaustov, A.A., Hugo-Coetzee, E.A., Ermilov, S.G. (2020) A new species
of Lorryia (Acari: Tydeidae) from termite nest in South Africa.
Acarina, 28(1), 47-53.
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Leroy, T., Rousselle, M., Tilak, M., Caizergues, A., Scornavacca, C.,
Carrasco, M. R., Fuchs, J., lllera, J. C., de Swardt, D. H., Thebaud,
C.. Mila, B. & Nabholz, B. (2021) Endemic island songbirds as
windows into evolution in small effective population sizes.
Current Biology 31; 1-8.

McPherron, S.P., Abdolahzadeh, A., Archer, W., Chan, A., Djakovic, I.,
Dogandzi¢, T., Leader, G.M., Li, L., Lin, S., Magnani, M. and
Reeves, J. (2020) Introducing platform surface interior angle
(PSIA) and its role in flake formation, size and shape. PLOS One,
15(11),p.e0241714.

Moodley, S. & Ponono, M. (2020) A historical perspective on culture
and communicationin South Africa. In Pathways Across Cultures:
Intercultural Communication in South Africa. (eds.) Rivera-
Sdnchez, M & du Plessis, R. Cape Town: Juta and Company (Pty)
Ltd.

Norton, L. A., Abdala, F., Rubidge, B.S and Botha, J. (2020) Tooth
replacement patterns in the Early Triassic epicynodont
Galesaurus planiceps (Therapsida, Cynodontia). PLOS One
15(12) e0243985. DOI: doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0243985.

Shipton, C., Blinkhorn, J., Archer, W., Kourampas, N., Roberts, P.,
Prendergast, M., Curtis, R., Herries, A., Ndiema, E., Boivin, N. A,
Petraglia, M. (2021) A Middle to Later Stone Age Lithic
Technological Sequence from the Tropical Coastal Forest of East
Africa.Journal of Human Evolution.

Smith, R. M. H., Rubidge, B. S., Day, M. O. and Botha, J. (2020)
Infroduction to the tetrapod biozonation of the Karoo
Supergroup in R. M. H. Smith (ed.), Karoo biostratigraphy. Special
Issue. South African Journal of Geology 123(2): 131-140.

Snyders, H. (2020) “Proceed to some other port where our flag may fly
in air that is not tainted with the stench of apartheid"-The
infersection between the domestic and international anti-
apartheid campaign and American naval visits to South Africa,
1948-1967. Southern Journal for Contemporary History: 45, no. 1:
95-118.

Snyders, H. (2020) “Preventing a silent wilderness, securing the
economic bounty”"-Cape guano and the politics of seabird
protection during the 19th and early 20th cenfury.” New
Contree:No 85, December 2020: 22-43.

Snyders, H. (2020) Programmes of frivolity on ice? Hockey, business,
diasporic identity and apartheid in South Africa, 1936-1992.
Historia 65,n0. 1:87-118.

Snyders, H. (2021) Rugby football and the display of New Zealand
identity during and beyond the Anglo-Boer war (1899-1907).
South African Journal of Cultural History 34, no. 2: 42—64.

Snyders, H. (2021) ‘For both language groups to feel at home either as
participants or sightseers’: Sport, memory, resistance and nation
at the 1952  Van Riebeeck Sports Festival” in Taylor McKee &
Brittany Reid (eds.), “Duelism:” Confronting Sport through Its
Doubles (Common Ground Research Networks); pp. 141-158.

Sychra, O., Halajian, A., Engelbrecht, G. D., Symes, C., Oschadleus, H.
D., de Swardt, D. H. & Papousek, I. (2020) Louse-flies (Diptera:
Hippoboscidae) of birds from South Africa: Prevalence and
Diversity. African Enfomology 28:249-261.

Tshililo, P. (2020) Review of South African Euryphyminae. Zootfaxa, 4820
(1),070-104.

44



Popular articles by National Museum Staff 2020- 2021

Archer, W. (2020) ‘Archaeological Excavation —history of research and
evolving fraditions at the site of Montagu Cave'. Culna 75.

Avenant, N. (2020) Kan aangepasde lamtye roofdierskade bepark?
(Can changing lambing periods decrease predation
damage?). Landbouweekblad VEE, issue 7 p. 84-85.

Bates, M.F. (2021) Common Dwarf Geckos: South Africa’s most
successfulrepfile invaders! Culna 75.

Botes, M. (2020) Charlotte Maxeke (1872-1939): ‘Mother of Black
freedomin South Africa’. Culna online.

Botes, M. (2020) Ella Fischer (1884-1946): Beloved community leader
and mother of Bram Fischer. Culna online.

Botes, M. (2020) George Bizos: Human Rightsicon extraordinaire. Culna
online.

Botha, J. (2020) Our ancient ancestors the Therapsida. Culna online
https://nationalmuseumpublications.co.za/our-ancient-
ancestors-the-therapsida/

Botha, J. (2020) The biggest mass extinction in Earth’s history. Culna
online https://nationalmuseumpublications.co.za/the-biggest-
mass-extinction-in-earths-history/

Daniel, G. (2020) Knowing dung beetles—Part 1. Culna online.

De Swardt, D. H. (2020) Birds of the Oliewenhuis koppies. Culna 75.

De Swardt, D. H. (2020) Cassanovia — the sad story of the Bloemfontein
Secretarybird.The Lark 31:77-79.

De Swardt, D. H. (2020) Eggs in the diet of Secretarybird nestlings. The
Lark 29: 62-64.

De Swardt, D. H. (2020) Lockdown garden bird ringing. Sakabula 58:
8-10.

De Swardt, D. H. (2021) Garden watch - Twitter feed. African Birdlife 9:
66

De Swardt, D. H. (2021) Long-tailed Paradise Whydah and Harlequin
Quailfeeding behaviour. The Lark 34: 70-72.

Du Bruyn, D and Du Plessis, E. (2020) Groot Griep se greep
onvergelykbaar. Bloemnuus 30/04/2020.

Du Bruyn, D. (2021) Human Rights Day 2021 | Peter Swartz Heidedal's
‘unknown’ struggle hero who fought for humanrights for all South
Africans. Culna online.

Du Bruyn, D. (2020) #BlackLivesMatter: what does it mean for South
Africae Culna 75.

Du Bruyn, D. (2020) Andrew Mlangeni: farewell to a gentleman struggle
veteran. Culna online.

Du Bruyn, D. (2020) Olive Schreiner: a feminist free thinker who was
ahead of hertime. Culna online.

Du Bruyn, D. (2020) Photographer Sam Nzima's house turned into @
museum. Culna online.

Hart, G. (2021) Finding cohesionin the cacophony. Culna online.

Havengaq, S. (2021) Nora Wellings & her novelty dolls. Culna 75.

Havenga, S. (2021) Victorian Fairings — Evocative, funny or just plain
sillye Culna 75.

Havenga, S. (2021) The Victorian Tussie-Mussie: from warding off the
plague to declaring yourundying love. Culna 75.

Hugo-Coetzee, L. (2020) ‘Taxi please!’ Mites catching a ride. Culna
online.

Hugo-Coetzee, L. (2021) Oribatid mites inhabiting termite nests. Culna
online.

Moodley, S. (2020) The Buffalo in San Rock Art. Culna.
https://nationalmuseumpublications.co.za/the-buffalo-in-san-
rock-art/

Msomi, S. (2021) Art Bank of South Africa: Nurturing emerging South
African artists. Art Times March 2021. p. 40—-44.

Muller, B. (2021) Flies, Flies everywhere, and how to collect them. Culna
online.

Muller, B. (2021) Not allflies are pests. Culna online.
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Neethling, J.A. (2020) Getting a grip on Pseudoscorpion claws. Culna
online.

Philip, L. (2020) ‘Pandemics of the World'. Culna 75.

Philip, L. (2020) ‘The role of archaeology in the research of pandemics’.
Culna75.

Pudumo, K. & Snyders, H. (2021) “Apartheid, two slices of bread, and
one tfeabag” the making of anti-apartheid activist, Constance
Tshabalala, Culna 75.

Pudumo, K. (2021) ‘Nazis, Lennon’'s Medicine & A New Age,
Remembering Caleb ‘Commandant’ Motshabi: Liberation
Strugglelcon.Culna 75.

Snyders, H. (2020) “Intersecting lives during and beyond the South
African freedom struggle: The case of Cyril Matamela
Ramaphosa and Olof Palme™. Culna online.

Snyders, H. (2020) “Our traditional game?2” Klawerjas, subaltern
heritage and marginal community in South Africa." Culna online.

Snyders, H. (2020) “South Africa’s Black Rugby Tradition” — Bud Mbelle —
First Secretary General of the SA Coloured Rugby Football Board.
Culnaonline.

Snyders, H. (2020) "South Africa’s Black Rugby Tradition” — from the
RhodesTrophy to the South Africa Cup, 1898-1971. Culna online.

Snyders, H. (2020) South African Rugby League History 10 July 1963.
Culnaonline.

Snyders, H. (2020) Today in South African Rugby History. Culna online.

Snyders, H. (2020) “Of bread, freedom and preventing ‘food
pandemics' — Oscar Mpetha and Liz Abrahams and the early
struggle of South African food and canning workers”. Culna
online.

Stobie, C. & Bates, M. (2020) Citizen science: Using Facebook records of
reptiles and amphibians. Quest 16(4):30-31.

Stobie, C.S & Bates, M.F. (2020) The value of citizen science in
evaluating current-day distribution of repfiles & amphibians: An
evaluation for Free State Province, South Africa. African Herp
News 75:33-39.

Stobie, C.S. (2020) Increasing representation of women authors in the
journal of the Herpetological Association of Africa (1990-2019).
African Herp News 74: 44-54.,

Van Rensburg, E. (2021) Mimicry Succulents of the Free State: Mastersin
disguise. Culna online.

RESEARCH PROJECTS OF THE
NATIONAL MUSEUM 2020/2021

ARCHAEOLOGY & ANTHROPOLOGY

Project529:  Digital approaches to behavioral change in African stone artefact producing hominins for
research, conservation and educational purposes.

Project528:  Exploration of the role of material culture in the expansion of Pleistocene African Homo
sapiens.

BOTANY
Project509:  Phylogenetics of Nanathus and Rabiea (Alzoaceae).

FLORISBAD QUATERNARY RESEARCH

Project309:  Grass Phytoliths from the Pleistocene homininsite of Malapa, Sterkfontein Valley, SA.

Project486:  Annotated catalogue of the fossil fauna from the Florisian land mammal age type site at
Florisbad, Free State Province, South Africa.
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Project 487:
Project 506:
Project 510:

Project511:
Project 523:

HERPETOLOGY

Project 64.6:

Project 265.3:

Project 390:

Project 462.1:

Project 495:

Project 496:
Project 497:

Project 498:
Project 499:

HISTORY

Project 100:
Project 101:
Project 259:
Project 373:
Project 379:
Project 463:
Project 468:
Project 488:
Project 494:
Project 500:
Project 467:
Project 470:
Project471:
Project 472:
Project 473:
Project 474:
Project 475:
Project 476:
Project 477:
Project 478:

Project 479:

Late Pleistocene climate change and osteology of the foot bonesin the Kalahari Springbok,
A. marsupialishofmeyeri. Completed.

Analysis of Giraffa giraffe carcasses struck by lightning on the farm Dronfield, Kimberley,
Northern Cape Province.

Areappraisal of the fossil porcupine Hystix makapanensis (Mammalia, Rodentia).

Evolution of West Coast Ecosystem:s.

Exploration of vulture, suid and small carnivore tfaphonomy in an arid grassland environment.

Taxonomic revision of the Afroedura nivaria Boulenger complex, with a description of anew
species (Sauria: Gekkonidae). Project closed.

Species limitsin the Pseudocordylus melanotus (A.Smith) complex (Sauria: Cordylidae).
Project closed.

Geographical variationin the egg-eating snakes of the genus Dasypeltis in Africa south of
latitude 12°S. Project closed.

Genetic diversity within two widespread Amietia speciesin central South Africa.

Revision of the Gerrhosaurus nigrolineatus Hallowell species complexin Africa Sauria:
Gerrhosouridae).

A molecular assessment of the Cordylus minor FizSimons species complex.

Arevision of the south-eastern dragon lizards of the Smaug warreni (Boulenger) species
complexinsouthern Africa, with the description of a new species (Squamata: Cordylidae).
A taxonomicrevision of Cordylus vittifer (Reichenow) (Sauria: Cordylidae).

Taxonomy of the genus Cordylus in Angola (Sauria: Cordylidae).

Therestoration of the corrugatediron house at Florisbad Research Station.

The appearance of gardens during the period 1890-19210 and the replanning of the garden
of Freshford House Museum.

Bloemfontein during the term of office of President FW Reitz, 1889-1895: a cultural history.
Doing oralhistory: a practical guide for beginners. Project completed.

The Batho Community History Project—Digaretene Project.

A hygienic Nafive fownship shallbe developed: the founding and development of Batho as
Bloemfontein's modellocation 1918-1939. Project completed.

A hidden history: gardens and gardening in Bloemfontein's (Mangaung) oldestlocations.
Project completed.

Batho's ‘garden areas of 50 ft. by 75 ft.": the making of a South African ‘gardenlocation’, with
specialreference toitsornamental gardens

“The idea of beautifying the surroundings”: inifiatives to turn Bloemfontein's (Mangaung)
Batholocationinto a ‘gardenlocation’, with specialreference to the role played by the
municipality and locationresidents (1918-1939). Project completed.

The Batho Liberation Heritage Route Brochure. Project completed.

Unmistakeably of the tennis courts —black women's tennis in Bloemfontein from the later 19th
century to unification.

For the sake of the game and sport: the OFS football board, apartheid and the
implementation of the SA council on sport double standard resolution, 1973-1978.

The greatest and most scientific exponent of the fine art of pugilism ever produced: Jimmy
Dixon and the intersection of race, politics and boxing.

Visionary Courtyard players —the Robben Island Rugby Board and the fransition to post
-apartheid South Africa c. 1972-1992. Project completed.

Damn!-welly good white man’s game: Race, golf and the struggle for social justice in South
Africa, c.1890-1991. Project completed.

A partnership in the challenges facing us: Apartheid and South African-Israelirugby relations,
c 1948-1989. Project completed.

From the South African Rugby museum to the ‘Springbok experience’ —rugby, reconcilation
and post-apartheid public memory. Projectcompleted.

Wrestling with apartheid: RSA-USA amateur wrestling relations,
completed.

Between Turnen and occupation: Race, identity and rugby in late-colonial Namibia. Project
completed.

Our fraditional game? Klawerjas, subaltern heritage and marginal community in the Western
Cape. Project completed.

The Black Orpington of Biff —colonialism, race and poverty in the prizefighting and boxing
career of Joe Young Pluto Brown, c 1872-1931. Project completed.

1960-1991. Project
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Project480:  Forbothlanguage groups to feel athome either as participants or sightseers: sport memory,
resistance and nation at the 1952—- Van Riebeeck Sports festival. Project completed.

Project481:  Little more thanrich soil. The anatomy and politics of the Cape Bat guano frade, 1890-1920.

Project482:  Balancinglegitimate claims and fortunate additions: Gaunopreneurs and the dynamics of
guano policy-makingin the cape -colony ¢ 1843-1845. Project completed.

Project483:  Anexperiment much o the health of the inhabitant: the 19th century Cape Colony frozen
water (ice) frade.

Project484:  Preventing asilent wilderness or securing the economic bounty2 Guano and the politics of
seabird profectionin the 19th century Cape colony. Projectcompleted.

Project485:  Programmes of frivolity onice 2 Hockey, business, diasproric identity and apartheid South
Africa, c. 1910-1992. Projectcompleted.

Project518:  Prisoner369/65: Louis Leo Mtshizana, apartheid, rugby and the struggle for social justice.

MAMMALOGY

Project 323: Monitoring smallmammals effectively: a comparison of frapping methods.

Project354:  Patternsinthe soil composition and structure, recovery of vegetation, and changesin mite,
insect, spider and smallmammal communities after fire in a grassland ecosystem, Erfenisdam
Nature Reserve, Free State Province.

Project375:  Canis Caracal Project.

Project456:  The Mammals of Lesotho.

Project460:  Smallmammals asindicators of the ecologicalimpact of the open-cast Kolomelairon ore
mine, Postmasburg.

Project493:  Smallmammals as anindicator of habitat change in the Kalahari.

Project501:  Biodiversity and global change in southern Africa: Rhabdomys contact zones—windows on
adaptability and climate change.

ORNITHOLOGY

Project221:  Behaviourand ecology of the African Rock Pipit Anthus crenatus in the Bloemfontein district.

Project464:  Studyon Gurney's Sugarbird Promerops gurneyiisolatedisland populationin Limpopo
Province and adjacent areas and their genetics based on blood sampling from birds.

Project492:  General bird collecting to expand the Ornithological collections and bird ringing as part of
the department’s curation andresearch activities.

PALAEONTOLOGY

Project 348.10: Anewradiomeftric date forthe South African Permo-Triassic mass exfinction event tests the

synchroneity of the terrestrial and marine biological crisis. Project completed.

Project 348.12: Biostratigraphy of the Lysfrosaurus Assemblage Zone.

Project368.7: Life history andreproductive strategy of Permo-Triassic Lysfrosaurus.

Project368.8: Diagenetic changeson bone histology of Quaternary mammals from a fropical cave deposit
insoutheastern Brazil. Project completed.

Project 368.14: Non-mammaliaform synapsids.

Project 368.16: Osteohistology of theropod dinosaurs from the Early Jurassic of South Africa.

Project421:  Toothreplacement patternsin Eutheriodontia of South Africa.

Project 422.2: Osteohistological characteristics of fossorial mammals. Project closed.

Project437:  The morphology and osteohistology of a new gorgonopsian (Therapsida; Gorgonopsia) from
the uppermost Permian of the Karoo Basin, South Africa.

Project444.  Comparative bone histology of Stigmochelys pardalis (Leopard Tortoise), with specific

reference to ontogeny and biomechanics. Project completed.

Osteohistology of the Late Triassic silesaurid Sacisaurus agudoensis from southern Brazil and
implications for growth in early dinosaurs. Project completed.

New osteohistological data on the late Triassic rhynchosaur Hyperodapedon from southern
Brazil, based on a humeral ontogenetic growth series. Project completed.

The ontogeny and taxonomy of the basal sauropodomorph dinosaur Massospondylus
carinatus.

Postcranial osteology of the neotype specimen of Massospondylus carinatus Owen 1854
from the upper Elliot formation of South Africa. Project completed.

A new species of Massospondylus and comments on cranial ontogeny in M. carinatus.
Project completed.

Project 452.2:
Project 452.3:
Project 455.2:
Project 455.3:

Project 455.4:

ROCK ART

Project489:.  Interpretation ofrough-pecked Khoekhoen engravingsin the centralinterior of southern
Africa.

Project490:  Battle of SamiKhubis.
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Project491:  Pathwaysacross cultures. Projectcompleted.

TERRESTRIAL INVERTEBRATES

Project441:  Revision of the South African Gymnobisiidae (Arachnida: Pseudoscorpiones).

Project465:  Mites (Acari) in termite nests. Project closed.

Project466:  Biodiversity and climate related distribution of intertidal oribatid mitesfrom South African
shores.

Project457:  Systematics of Afrotropical Athericidae (water snipe flies).

Project458:  Diversification and expansion of the National Museum Entomology collections.

Project504:  Systematics of the endemic, Afrofropical dung beetle genus of Odontoloma
(Scarabaeidae: Scarabaeinae).

Project505:  Revision of the South African pseudoscorpion fauna (Arachnida: Pseudoscorpiones).

EXHIBITIONS HOSTED AT OLIEWENHUIS
ART MUSEUM 2020/2021

The Don Quixote Portfolio, A recent donation accepted into the Oliewenhuis Art Museum Permanent Collection, 10 December 2020 — 21 February
2021, Annex Gallery.

- = B

Tiro ya diatla: New Acquisitions of the Art Bank of South Africa Exhibition, 11 March - 18 April 2021, Main Building.
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HOME Legae, Lehae, Ekhaya, Home, Tuiste, Curated by Oliewenhuis Art Museum and ArtBankSA Interns, appointed as part of the Presidential Stimulus
Programme supported by The Department of Sport, Arts & Culture in partnership VANSA, 18 March — 9 May 2021, Annex Gallery.

EXHIBITIONS HOSTED BY THE ARTBANK
OF SOUTH AFRICA 2020/2021

Tiro ya diatla (Oliewenhuis Art Museum) 11 March 2021 - 18 April 2021.

VIRTUAL EXHIBITIONS WERE HELD FOR:

Human Rights Day (Virtual video/Social media: collaboration with Oliewenhuis Art Museum) 21 March 2021.
Women'’s Day (Virtual exhibition (collaboration with Oliewenhuis Art Museum) 11 August 2020.
Youth Day (Virtual exhibition) 16 June 2020.

50



PART C:
GOVERNANCE
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INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public enftities are directed, controlled
and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation,
and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the
precepfts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and runin tandem with the principles contained in
the King's Report on Corporate Governance. Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of
the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.

The National Museum strives to be committed to sound corporate governance and is primarily guided by
generally accepted corporate governance practices, as well as Corporate Governance in the public
sector. These seek to ensure that the Museum’s mandate is fulfiled with due consideration o responsive

decision making, accountability, effective and ethicalleadership, as well as fairness and transparency whilst
monitoring performance and compliance with statutory requirements.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

The Museum did not attend any meetings for the period.

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

All compliance reports were submitted to DSAC by the due date. No issues have been raised.

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY/BOARD

The full report is tabled in the Annual Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Museum appointed Business Optimization Training Institute (BOTI) to conduct risk management fraining
for National Museum Staff and Managers. Topics covered in the fraining included:

Infroducerisk andrisk management and the importance thereof.
Employees NBrole in Enterprise- Wide Risk Management.
Identifying Hazards and Risks in the workplace.

Stepsin the Risk Management Processrelevant to employees.

In addition, the Managersreceived Risk Management for Managers which covered the following topics:

Managing Risk for Managers

Risk Governance

How to conduct a contfinuousrisk assessment
Analysing, Evaluating and ranking risks

Risk controlmeasures

Risk Treatment techniques

Monitoring and reviewing risks

The National Museum is required to maintain an effective, efficient and tfransparent system of financial, risk
management and infernal contfrol measures in accordance with the provisions of the PFMA. Council has
identified risk management as a focus area and its current practices were enhanced by the strengthening of
the policy environment andrisk reporting. The Council approved a Risk Management Framework and Policy
in2019.
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Risks are continuously identified, assessed, evaluated, mitigated, monitored andreviewed. Aseachrisk was
identified it was allocated to arelevant person in the respective Department responsible for the day-to-day
management thereof and recorded in arisk register that contains the descriptions, causes, controlsin place,
assessments and mitigating actions of all risks identified. The identification was both at operational and
strategic levels and regular assessments were performed to determine the effectiveness of the risk
management and to identify emergingrisks.

The Audit and Risk Committee advises management on the overall system of risk management, especially
the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk. They also advise the Council on risk management and
independently monitor the effectiveness of the system of risk management.

Enterprise-Wide Risk Management has been fully implemented at the Museum. There has been significant
progress in the reporting period in the management of risks, and this has translated into improvements in the
Museum's performance.

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

There is no separate Internal Control Unit. Management is responsible for the maintenance of internal
controls.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND
AUDIT COMMITTEES

Objectives of Internal audit

The objectives of internal audit are to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting activities
designed to add value andimprove operations of the Museum.

Key Activities of Internal Audit

Arisk-based strategic approach is adopted which takes into account the results of the formal risk assessment
conducted by management. This was used fo develop a risk- based three- year internal audit plan. This is
revised annually and the annual intfernal audit plan based on updated risk assessment is submitted to the
audit committee for approval at the start of the financial year. The Internal Audit Plan was implemented for
2019/20 andis within budget.

Key activities and objectives of the audit committee

The Audit and Risk Committee’s scope of work is determined by the requirements of Treasury Regulations
3.1.10. Accordingly, and in line with this regulation, the Committee’s objectives were to assess and advise
among other things, on the following matters:

o Effectiveness of the intfernal control systems;

Effectiveness of the internal audit function;

Risk areas of the Entity’s operations to be coveredin the scope of infernal and external audits;

Adeqguacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to management and other

users of suchinformation;

* Any accounting and auditing concernsidentified as aresult of internal and external audits;

* Enfity’s compliance withlegal and regulatory provisions;

» Activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, co-ordination with the
external auditors, the reports of the significant investigations and responses of management to specific
recommendations.

The table below disclosesrelevant information on the audit committee members.
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(Member - Council
member)

Public Administration
(MPA).

Occupational Based
ETD- Human Resource
Management.

ETD-Inclusive Education.

Occupational Based
ETD-Public Sector
(Budget & General

Financial Management,

Occupationally Based
ETD-Public Sector
(Manage Expenditure
against Budget)

Name Qualification Internal or If internal, Date Date resigned No of
external position in the appointed meetings
public entity attended

Mr K Nkoe Certified Chartered External N/A 23/11/2017 31/01/2021 3

(Chairperson - Accountant.

Independent member) | B.Com Degree

Mr MP Mphi B.Com. External N/A 14/06/2018 4

(Member - Independent | (Accounting)

member)

Mr MR Mothapo B. Compt External N/A 14/06/2018 5

(Member - Independent

member)

Mr M Noge CA (SA) External N/A 7/11/2018 5

(Member - Council

member)

Dr L Munsamy Masters Degree in External N/A 7/11/2018 4

COMPLIANCE WITH
AND REGULATIONS

The National Museum has developed policies and procedures aligned to laws and regulations that govern
the industry in which the Museum operates, in order fo ensure compliance. The policies and procedures
were reviewed and approved by Council. The National Museum complied with laws andregulations and no
material non-compliance was identified by the AGSA during the audit. Compliance isreported on quarterly
through the Audit Committee.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The National Museum developed a fraud prevention plan. Training and sensitisation of reporting fraud was
highlighted to the staff and how to make use of the DAC Fraud hotline.
Management and the Audit and Risk Committee held a scheduled Fraud Risk Workshop and identified fraud

risks. A Fraud Risk Registeris maintained and tabled to Council on a quarterly basis.

LAWS

MINIMISING CONFLICT
OF INTEREST

Service providers depending on the threshold as determined in the Museum’s Supply Chain Management
Policy, are required to declare their inferest and knowledge of Museum’s officials that are or could be
involved in the respective procurement process in an SBD4 form in accordance with National Treasury
Practise Note 7 of 2009/2010.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

As a public entity the Museum subscribes to both the Code of Conduct for Public Servants and the
International Council of Museums (ICOM) Code of Ethics for Museums. The reason for adopting these two
Codes is to help Museum employees to understand the standards of personal and professional behaviour
required to enable the Museum to fulfilits public mandate in terms of the Cultural Institutions Act of 1998 and
the Public Service Actof 1994.

HEALTH SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

A special Health and Safety Report was procured to review the Museum's fire hazards. The OHS committee
was active in the financial period and systematically aftended to all the recommendations from this report.
OHS first responders received refresher fraining in First Aid and Fire. OHS Committee members received OHS
Supervisor Training.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Fullreportis tabled in the Annual Financial Statements.

B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE requirements
of the BBBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade and Industry.

Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate Levels 1 - 8)
with regards to the following:

Criteria Response Discussion
Yes / No (include a discussion on your response and indicate what
measures have been taken to comply)

Determining qualification criteria for the issuing of No The entity was assessed for BBBEE status and obtained Non-
licences, concessions or other authorisations in compliant BBBEE certificate.

respect of economic activity in terms of any law?

Developing and implementing a preferential No The entity was assessed for BBBEE status and obtained Non-
procurement policy? compliant BBBEE certificate, however the Museum has

developed and is currently implementing an SCM policy
that applies 80/20 preferential point system that is based

on PPPFA.
Determining qualification criteria for the sale of No The entity was assessed for BBBEE status and obtained Non-
state-owned enterprises?2 compliant BBBEE certificate.
Developing criteria for entering intfo partnerships No The entity was assessed for BBBEE status and obtained Non-
with the private sector? compliant BBBEE certificate.
Determining criteria for the awarding of incentives, | No The entity was assessed for BBBEE status and obtained Non-
grants and investment schemes in support of Broad compliant BBBEE certificate.

Based Black Economic Empowerment?2
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HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT
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INTRODUCTION

During the financial year, the Council approved a new Employment Equity Policy and Plan. The Employment
Equity Plan considered national andregional demographics and targets were accordingly set. The Museum
is in the process of transformation and tries tfo attract black scientists fo improve our demographics.
Transformation is a key imperative and the Museum is lagging behind when it comes to its scientists and
Heads of Research departments. We can only address these challenges when vacancies arise. During the
financial period, the Museum was successful in employing a skilled black HOD to fill the vacancy of HOD:
Facilities Management.

The Council also approved a Programme to Develop Black Scientists. Treasury has approved the use of
surplus funds to implement this development programme. Two black aspiring scientists were provided with
development plans fo develop them into museum scientists in the short ferm and they are being mentored
by the HOD. Further, an internship appointment in Ornithology is providing workplace experience for one
black aspiring museum scientist. The Museum also has a target to attract a black scientist to complete
his/her post-doctoralresearchin one of ourresearch disciplines.

Human capital is a critical component of the Museum’s competitive edge. The Museum unfortunately
competes with universities and other institutions with larger budgets for a small pool of highly skilled scientfists.
Yearonyearbudget cuts exacerbate the situation as top scientists are mostly unaffordable for the Museum.

In the 18.19 period the Museum reviewed the organisational structure. Phase 1 of the project looked at
reviewing job descriptions to ensure that they were fit for purpose, and at the grading and salaries of each
position. This exercise has been completed and the Museum adjusted the salaries of staff whose salaries fell
outfside the minimum of the salary band. Phase 2 of the review is under way and it is expected that
completion willbe hindered by budget constraints.

The Museum implemented its performance management policy during the year. Special focus was placed
on ensuring that targets set were aligned to job descriptions and were aligned to the Annual Performance
Plan of the Museum. Several staff members could not parficipate in the programme as they were not
allowed to work due to the lockdown or co-morbidities/ age constraints.

Unionisation atthe workplace

The Museum has a formalised unionised environment. There are 3 (three) unions that enjoy the support of 40
staff members at the Museum. These unions are NEHAWU with 35 members, PSA 3 members and SASAWU 2
members.

The Council formally recognised NEHAWU in 2019, and in ferms thereof a signed Recognition Agreement was
concluded between the employer and the Union. Pursuant to this agreement, 2 (two) shop stewards have
been appointed af the Museum workplace to represent staff in their dealings with management. Furtherin
terms of the agreement, NEHAWU and Management meet to discuss staffissues that the union wants toraise.
The Councilis apprised on a quarterly basis of unionissues which are raised. The pie chart below shows union
representation at the National Museum as at 31 March 2021.

UNION MEMBERSHIP

PSA
L SASAWU

35
NEHAWU
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HUMAN RESOURCE
OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Below are ourkey Human Resource Oversight Statistics:

Personnel cost by programme / activity / objective

Programme / activity / Total Personnel Personnel exp. |No. of Average

objective Expenditure for | Expenditure as a % of total | employees personnel cost
the entity (R’000) exp. (R'000) per employee
(R'000) (R'000)

Programme 1. Business 21 341 18 956 89% 47 403

development: Curation and

Conservation of Collections,

Research and Information

Management.

Programme 2. Public 7 434 6 448 87% 30 215

engagement: Marketing,

Public Educational

Programmes.

Programme 3: Administration: 27 283 13 249 49% 45 294

Support services.

Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel Expenditure | % of personnel exp. to | No. of employees Average personnel

(R'000) total personnel cost cost per employee
(R’000) (R’000)

Top Management 2775 6 2 1388

Senior 13312 31 17 783

Management

Professional 4735 11 12 395

qualified

Skilled 12 639 29 35 361

Semi-skilled 4075 9 19 215

Unskilled 6120 14 43 142

TOTAL 43 656 100 128* 341

*The above figure includes temporary and fixed term staff that are not on the organogram.

Performancerewards

Programme / activity / objective Performance rewards |Personnel Expenditure |% of performance

(R’000) rewards to total
personnel cost (R'000)

Top Management 0 2775 0%
Senior Management 104 13312 0.78%
Professional qualified 42 4735 0.89%
Skilled 120 12 639 0.95%
Semi-skilled 19 4075 0.47%
Unskilled 46 6120 0.75%
TOTAL 331 43 656 0.76%

Training costs

EXTERNAL TRAINING CONDUCTED 20/21

Course No of staff Per unit cost
Risk Management 72 R2 462.43
Commission for Gender Equality: Gender Based Violence 61 No costs
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Course No of staff Per unit cost
Families South Africa: Leading Family Life 61 No costs
Employment and vacancies
Programme / activity / 2019/2020 No. | 2020/2021 2020/2021 No. | 2020/2021 % of vacancies

objective of Employees Approved Posts | of Employees Vacancies

Permanent 102 103 100 3 2.9%
Fixed term 5 5 5 0 0%
Casuals (Relief Staff) 1 0 1 0 0%
Interns 11 11 11 1 9%
Programme / activity / 2019/2020 No. |2020/2021 2020/2021 No. |2020/2021 % of vacancies
objective of Employees Approved Posts | of Employees Vacancies

Top Management 1 1 1 0 0%
Senior Management 1 2 1 1 50%
Professional qualified 17 17 17 0 0%
Skilled 42 42 42 0 0%
Semi-skilled 6 7 6 1 14%
Unskilled 41 41 41 0 0%
TOTAL 108 110 108 1,85%

Employment changes

Below table reflects information on changes in employment over the financial year.

Salary Band Employment at Appointments Terminations Employment at
beginning of the end of the period
period

Top Management 1 0 0 1

Senior Management 1 1 0 1

Professional qualified 16 1 1 16

Skilled 42 0 2 41

Semi-skilled 6 0 0 6

Unskilled 41 1 1 41

TOTAL 107* 3 4* 106

*The above table excludes interns and casual staff not on the organogram.

Reasons for staff leaving

Reason Number
Death 0

Resignation 2

Dismissal 0

Refirement 2

I health 0

Expiry of confract 2* (casual staff)
Other 0

Total 6

Staff turnover is very low at the Museum.
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Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number
Verbal Warning 0
Written Warning 2
Final Written Warning 0
Dismissal 0

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

The Museum’s staff demographics comprise 55% female and 45% male. White staff make up 44% of the staff
complement. The Museum has an Employment Equity Plan and is in the process of sefting equity targets
which will guide the recruitment of new staff.

Levels MALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current |Target Current |Target Current | Target Current |Target
Top Management 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a
Senior Management 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a
Professional qualified 2 n/a 1 n/a 1 n/a 6 n/a
Skilled 6 n/a 1 n/a 0 n/a 6 n/a
Semi-skilled 3 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a
Unskilled 17 n/a 2 n/a 0 n/a 1 n/a
SUB TOTALS 28 4 1 13
TOTAL MALES 44
Levels FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current | Target Current |Target Current |Target Current |Target
Top Management 0 n/a 1 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a
Senior Management 1 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a
Professional qualified 0 n/a 0 n/a 1 n/a 7 n/a
Skilled 7 n/a 2 n/a 0 n/a 19 n/a
Semi-skilled 2 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 1 n/a
Unskilled 16 n/a 0 n/a 0 n/a 2 n/a
SUB TOTALS 26 3 1 29
TOTAL FEMALES 59
Levels DISABLED STAFF

MALE FEMALE

Current Target Current Target
Top Management 0 0 1 1
Senior Management 0 0 0 0
Professional qualified 0 0 0 0
Skilled 0 0 0 0
Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0
Unskilled 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 1 1
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REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the National Museum,
Bloemfontein

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

1. Ihave audited the financial statements of the National Museum Bloemfontein set out on pages 66 to 124,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changesin net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
National Museum Bloemfontein as at 31 March 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of myreport.

4. | am independent of the public entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit in South Africa. | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.

5. Ibelieve that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Emphasis of matter

6. | draw atftention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2020 were
restated as aresult of an error in the financial statements of the public entity at, and for the year ended,
31 March 2021.

Events after the reporting date

8. Idraw attentionto note 34 to the financial statements, which deals with events after the reporting period
that deals with the re-organising of the botany and herpetology departments to create the department
of animal and plant systematic, effective from 1 April 2021.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements

9. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and for such
infernal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

10. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the public
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating fo going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure
eitherintends to liquidate the public entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.
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Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

1.

12.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tfaken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor'sreport.

Report onthe audit of the annual performance report

Infroduction and scope

13.

14.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in ferms thereof, |
have aresponsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report. | performed procedures to identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express
assurance.

My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, which
must be based on the public entity’'s approved performance planning documents. | have not
evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the
planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken by the public entity
enabled service delivery. My procedures do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to the
extent of achievements in the current year or planned performance strategies and information in
respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information.
Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with

the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the
general notice, for the following selected programme presented in the public entity’'s annual
performancereport forthe yearended 31 March 2021

Programmes Pages in the annual
performance report
Programme 1 — Business Development 23-27
16. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly

presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning
documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets
were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to
determine whetherit was valid, accurate and complete.

. | did not identify material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance

information for the following programme:

J Programme 1-Business Development

Other matter

18.

| draw attention to the matter below.

Adjustment of material misstatements

19.

| identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These
material misstatements were in the reported performance information of programme 1 — Business
Development. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, | did not raise any material
findings on the usefulness andreliability of the reported performance information.
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Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction of scope

20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to
report material findings on the public entity’'s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. |
performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

21. ldid notidentify any material findings on compliance with the specific mattersin key legislation set outin
general noticeissuedin ferms of the PAA.

Otherinformation

22. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial
statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report that have been specifically reportedin this auditor'sreport.

23. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an audit opinion or
any form of assurance conclusion onit.

24. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the ofther information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected
programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

25. 1 did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When | do receive and
read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the otherinformation be
corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-
issue an amended report as appropriate. However, ifitis corrected this willnot be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

26. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any
form of assurance onit. 1did notidentify any significant deficienciesininternal control.

Atditor- Geasal

Bloemfontein
30 July 2021

W,
atm

=

(:

AU DR E - E M E R AL
souiM AFRICA

64



Annexure —Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed
on reported performance information for selected programmes and on the public entity’s compliance
withrespectto the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
report, | also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the public entity’sinternal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates andrelated disclosures made by the accounting authority.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the National Museum Bloemfontein to confinue as a going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required fo draw attention in my
auditor’sreport to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions
are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause a public entity to cease operating as a going concern.

* evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions
and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

| communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that lidentify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting authority with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATIONAL MUSEUM, BLOEMFONTEIN
31 MARCH 2021

The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the parliament:
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Audit Committee Report 69
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 75-78
Accounting Policies 79-94
Notes to the Financial Statements 95-124

The following supplementary information does not form part of the financial statements 125
and is unaudited: Supplementary Information

PFMA Public Finance Management Act
GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
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REPORT OF THE
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

The Accounting Officer are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), fo maintain
adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements
and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Accounting Officer to
ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are
engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access
to allfinancialrecords andrelated data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accounting Officer acknowledges that she is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial
control established by the enfity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong confrol
environment. To enable the Accounting Officer to meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Officer sefs
standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties fo ensure an acceptable level of risk. These
conftrols are monitored throughout the Museum and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the Museum'’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Museum is on identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Museum. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the Museum endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, confrols,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The Accounting Officeris of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management,
that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financialrecords may be relied on
for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can
provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Officer has reviewed the Museum's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2021 and, in
the light of this review and the current financial position, she is satisfied that the National Museum has or has
access fo adequateresources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the National Museum's
annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the entity’s external
auditors and theirreportis presented on page 62.

The Annual Financial Statements set out on page 66, which have been prepared on the going concern
basis, were approved by the Accounting Officeron 31 March 2021 and were signed onits behalf by:

Sharon Snell

Chief Executive Officer
National Museum, Bloemfontein
31 March 2021
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present ourreport for the financial yearended March 31, 2021.
Audit committee members and altendance

The Audit Committee consists of the external members listed hereunder and the Committee is required to
meet a minimum of two fimes per annum as per the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act
(PFMA). In terms of the approved Audit Committee Charter, four meetings were held during the year. i.e.
four meetings to consider the Quarterly Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial), one special
audit committee to review and discuss the Annual Financial Statements and the Auditor- General of South
Africa’s (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports.

Name of member Number of meetings altended

Mr. K. Nkoe (Chairperson) 3 (3 Year ferm appointed as an independent member)

- term ended 31 January 2021

Mr. N. Noge 5 (3 year term appointed as a non-independent member)
Mr. MP. Mphi 4 (3 year term appointed as an independent member)
Mr. MR. Mothapo (Acting Chairperson) 5 (3 year term appointed as an independent member)

- from 01 February 2021

Dr. L. Munsamy 3 (3 year term appointed as a non-independent member)

Audit committee responsibility

The audit committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(10) (1) of the
PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The audit committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal
terms of reference asits audit committee charter, hasregulated its affairsin compliance with this charter and
has discharged allits responsibilities as contained therein.

The Committee has performed the following key responsibilities:

. Adopted the audit and Risk Management Charter and proposed approved to Council.

. Reconfirmed the appropriateness of the Internal Audit Charter and methodology.

. Approved the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year and monitored the implementation of
the plan.

. Evaluated the findings raised by internal and external audit and made the recommendations
on addressing those matters.

. Performed a review of financial information submitted to the committee and commented
specifically on concerns raised based on year-to-date information and accuracy of
projections.

. Licised with the Auditor General on maftters relating fo communication with those charged

with governance.
The effectiveness of internal control
The Committee acknowledges management’s effort to maintain conftrols within the organisation.

Management is responsible for the organisation's system of infernal controls. These are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the Financial Statements and to adequately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and prevent and detect misstatement and losses.
Nothing has come fo the attention of Management and The Committee to indicate that any material
breakdown in the functioning of these conftrols, procedure and systems has occurred during the year under
review, internal auditors reported instances of non-compliance or weakness in internal controls. The
Committee assessed Management’s comments to the findings and are satisfied with the adequacy thereof
and the remedial steps Management has proposed to deal with the findings. The Committee willreceive a
quarterly tracking register wherefrom they will frack Management’s progress in resolving the findings.

The Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of management and quarterly reports prepared and
issued during the financial yearunderreview.
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The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA.

The audit andrisk committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared andissued
by the management of the enfity during the yearunderreview.

Evaluation of annualfinancial statements

The audit andrisk committee has:

e reviewed and discussed the unaudited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report,
with the Auditor-General;

* reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management report and management’s response
thereto;

* reviewed changesin accounting policies;

* reviewed the enfity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

* reviewed information on predetermined objectives o be includedin the annualreport.

Internal audit

In terms of the PFMA, the Accounting Officer needs to ensure that the department has a system of intfernal
audit under control and direction of the Committee. The internal audit function hasbeen outsourced.

The Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed
the risks pertinent to the entity. The Committee is safisfied that the internal audit function maintains an
effective internal quality assurance and programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit acfivities.

Auditor-General’s Report
The audit and risk committee concurs with and accepfts the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the

annual financial statements, and believes the annual financial statements be accepted and read together
with thereport of the Auditor-General.

Mr.M.R. Mothapo
Acting Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 March 2021
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Statement of Financial Position as at March 31, 2021

Figures in Rand thousand Moteis) 2021 2020
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories ¥ 109 106
Receivablas from exchange transactions & 1.853 703
Cash and cash equivalents g 130,088 106,884
132,150 107,682
MNon-Current Assets
Property, plant and K] 12,197 12,050
equipment Heritage assets 4 135422 138,180
Employee benstit asset ] 5,187 14,838
156,816 166,079
Total Assets 288,966 273,711
Liabilities
Currant Liabilities
Finance lease ohligation 14 37 33
Payables from exchange fransactions 10 4.840 3.864
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 13 58,938 62,332
Provisions 11 1.724 -
Payables from non-gxcnange transactions 12 16,000 -
93,540 67,229
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lesse obligation 14 az 118
Employes henefit obligation b a0 848 2B.3TE
30,930 26,497
Total Liabilities 124,470 893,726
Met Assets 164,496 180,045
Reserves
Capital replacemant reserves 2,543 2445
Accumulated surplus 161,963 177.5497
Total Net Assets 164,496 180,045
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand thousand Mote(s) 2021 2020
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Artbank Income 205 113
Rental incams 2 367
Projects income 241 56
Trading revenue 18 34 271
Interest receivec 19 4,281 7725
Zair on disposal of assets and liahilities - a
Actuarial gairs - 11,763
Total ravanue from exchange transactions 4,764 20,303
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

External Funding 272 453
Free usze of buildings 3,904 3,771
Local and foreign aid ass stance - ]
Presidential employment stimulus pregramme 16 5147

Transfers and subsidies receivec 20 E7,958 53,735
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 67,371 57,963
Total revanue racaived 15 72,135 78,271
Expenditure

Staff costs 21 ‘4B,570] (42,923)
FRemuneration of councillars (384 (389
Depreciation (2,£88) [2.414)
Finance costs 22 {1,645) (2,763
Bad debts (9 {r0)
Presidential employment stimulus pregramme experses 18 4,393) -
Actuarial losses 112,637) -
Other operating expenses 23 7,482 (16,241)
Total expenditure {85, 608) |64,802)
Surplus [Deficit) for the year {13,473} 13,469
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Capital Accumulated Total net

replacemeant surplus assets
Figures in Rand thousand reserys
Balance at April 1, 2019 2,285 164,588 167 173
Changes in nel assets
Adjustments 1o accumulated depreciation - (1184} [1,164)
Additions to heritage asseis - 273 273
Other movernents and changes - 151 151
Net income {losses) recogmsed directly in net assats - { TR0 (ram
Surplus for the year - 13,4649 13 450
Tolal recognised income and expensas for the year - 12.708 12,709
Movemant in accumulated reserves 163 - 153
Total changas 163 12,708 12,872
Balance at 01 April 2020 as restated” 2,448 175,425 177,873
Ghanges in nel assets
Surplus for the year - (12,473} (13475
Movement in accurnulated reserves a5 - ah
Other movements and changes - 1 1
Total changes L [13.472) (13,377)
Balance at March 31, 2021 2.543 161,953 164 436
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand thousand 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Cash receipts from customers 5,067 1127
Grantg received E7.958 53,735
Interest received 4 2481 5 081
68,236 60,823
Payments
Employes costs (45,085} 740,109
Suppliers (7,508} 11,061
Finance costs (1,645} (2,763
(54,245) (54,023)
Met cash flows from operating activities 13,987 6,200
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and eguipment 3 (2.656) (2,038)
Proceeds from =ale of propery, plant and equipment 3 7 &
Purchase of heritage assets {232) (273
Cther non-cash tems (5.068) 2,851
Net cash flows from investing activities {&,750) 250
Cash flows from financing activities
Maovement in other liability 18.0C0 -
Finance lease payments {23} (29)
Met cash flows from financing activities 17,967 {29)
Met increasaf{decreéase) in cash and cash equivalents 23,204 7,021
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 106,884 98 863
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 130,088 106,854




Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
hudget on comparable betwsaen final
Dasis hudget and

Figures in Rand thousand actual
Statement of Financlal Perfformance
Revanue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Artbank income - - " 208 206 1
Rental income 300 - oo 2 (298) 2
Projects income - . - 349 241 4
Trading revenue 154 . 154 4 (120} 5
Interest received - investment 2,409 - 2409 4 281 1,872 B
Total revenue from excha nge 2,863 - .2.,86-3. 4,?54_ 1,901
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Transfer revenue
Grants received 63,917 {12,818 57,399 57,858 55% 7
Free Use of Building - . G 3,994 3,994
Local and foreign aid assistance = 2 ' 5,147 5,147
External funding . - - 272 272 g
Total revenue from non- 69,917 {12,518) 57,399 67,371 9,972
axchangs transactions
Total revenue 72,780 (12,5618) 60,262 72135 11,873
Expenditure
Staff costs (45,095) - 145,095} {46,570) {1.475)
Remuneration of councillors (384 - {354} (384) -
Deprecistion and amaortisation {2,227} = {2,227 (2 488) (261} g
Finance costs - : £ {1,6545) {1.645) 10
Bad debts writlen off . 4 ~ {9 B
Fresidential Employmant = - . (4,393) {4,393} 3
atimulus Programme
General Expenses (15,443) . {15,443} {17,482) {2,038 11
Total expenditure (63,148} : (83,148} {(72,971) {9,822)
Operating deficit 8,631 (12,518) (2,887 (B36) 2,051
Actuarial gains/losses 2 - - {12,637 (12,637}
Deficit before taxation 9,631 {12,518) (2,887) {13,473) {10,588}
Actual Amount on Comparable 9.631 (12,518) {2,387) (13.473) (10,556}

EBasis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Refarance
budget an comparable betwsen final
Dasis hudget and

Figures in Fand thousand actual
Statement of Financlal Position
Assets
Current Assats
Inventories 1,770 - 1,770 109 {1,661} 12
Receivables from exchange 703 - 703 1,863 1,230 13
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents 105 884 - 106,284 130,088 23,204 14

109,357 - 109,357 132,150 22,793
Non-Current Assets
Appreciative Artworks 3,848 - 3848 . {3.848)
Froperty. plant and equipment 8,553 5 9,592 12,187 2,604 15
Heritage assets 138,180 . 139,180 139,422 232 16
Employes bensfit asset 14,839 - 14,838 5197 {9,642 17

167,470 - 167,470 156,816 (10,854}
Total Assets 276,327 . 276,827 283,566 12,138
Liakilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease abligation 33 - 33 KT 4
Fayables from exchange 3.864 - 3,864 4,840 978 18
transactians
Unspent conditional grants and 63,512 - 63,612 68,239 5427 k]
receipts
Provisions = Z 2 1,724 1,724 20
Payables from non-exchange 5 g - 18,000 18,000
transactions

§7,408 : 67,400 93 540 26,131
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 118 = 118 &2 (37)
Employes benefit obligation 28,378 . 26,378 30,348 4,470 17
26,497 : 26,497 30,930 4433

Total Liabilities 93,906 - 93,906 124 470 30,564
Het Assets 182,921 2 182,921 164,496 {18,425}
Met Assals
Nat Azsais Attributable to
Owners of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated resarves 2443 Z 2448 2,543 a5
Accumulated surplus 177,298 - 177,208 161,054 (15,344}
Total Het Assets 179,748 - 179,746 164,497 (15,249}
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Reasons for the difference between budgeted and actual.

1. Artbankincome

The variance is due to sale of artworks from the Art Bank inventory that was not initially budgeted for the year
underreview.

2. Rentalincome

The rental income variance is due to the Oliewenhuis Terrace Restaurant not being in operation during the
year.

3. Presidential Employment Stimulus Programme

The variance is due to the PESP which came info effect because of the COVID-19 pandemic. This was not
budgeted for as the impact of the pandemic could not be predicted.

4. Projectincome
The variance is due fo income from projects that was not budgeted for.
5.Tradingrevenue

The variance is due to the decrease visitors due to the COVID-19 pandemic which forced the Museum to be
closed to the public forthe greater part of the financial year.

6.Interestreceived

The variance is due to the fluctuation of interest rates by financial institutions in response to the pandemic.
7. Grantsreceived

The variance is due fo less funding received than the initial amounts budgeted for.

8. Externalfunding

The variance is due to external funding not being budgeted for as this is received from third parties for
scientificresearch purposes.

9. Depreciation

The variance is due fo new assets added in the financial yearunderreview.

10. Finance cost

The variance is as aresult of the photocopying machine being a budgeted expenditure and not an item of
property, plant and equipment of which contrary to the standard, GRAP 13 requires that we recognise the
asset onthe substance over formresultingin afinance lease liability.

11. General expenses

The variance is due to less expenditure incurred during the year as aresult of the COVID-19 pandemic which
had animpact on the Museum’s operations.

12. Inventories
The variance is due to current year additions to Artworks.
13. Receivables from exchange transactions

The variance is largely due to outstanding amounts from the Department of Sports, Arts and Culfure which
was not budgeted for.

14. Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is not budgeted for. The prior year comparative is used as a basis, with the net
movementsin the bank accounts being the variance shown as at the end of the financial year.
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15. Property, plant and equipment
The variance is due to purchases made during the year being lesser than initially budgeted.
16. Heritage assets

The variance is due to the valuation on the new acquisitions, this is an area that requires significant
judgement and therefore the budgeted figure will likely not equal actual.

17. Employee Benefits

The variance is due to the valuation of the fund at yearend. Thiswas also affected by the pension fund being
converted entirely to DC during the financial year.

18. Payables from exchange transactions

The variance is due to an overpayment amount from DSAC during March 2021 which had to be returned by
the Museum. This fransaction was not completed at the end of the financial year.

19. Unspent conditional grants

The variance is due to more conditional grants received during the yearresulting in a greater unspent liability
due to conditions not being met for transfers torevenue.

20. Provisions

The variance is due to the provision for municipal charges which was raised during the year as a result of
inconsistencies and disputes on the monthly invoices.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1)
of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance
with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented
in South African Rand and are rounded off to the nearest thousand (R'000).

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation
of these financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note
First-time adoption of Standards of GRAP.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the National Museum will
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

Funds were obtained and usedin accordance with alegally adopted budget.

1.2 Comparative figures

Where the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended, prior period
comparative amounts are also restated and reclassified. The nature and reason for the reclassification will

be disclosed.

Where accounting errors relating to prior periods have been identified in the current year, the correction is
made refrospectively as far asitis practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. The
presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with prior periods, unless specified
otherwise.

1.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying policies

The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing annual financial
statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in the future periods.

Judgements

Inthe process of applying these accounting policies, management has made certain judgements that may
have asignificant effect on the amountsrecognisedin the financial statements.

Estimates

The entity makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at date
of Financial Position as well as the reportedrevenue and expenses for the year.

Estimates and judgements are evaluated annually and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Receivables

The museum assesses its frade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the museum makes
judgements as fo whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a financial asseft.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios,
adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the
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reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annualloss ratios are applied to balances
in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.

1.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying policies
Impairment testing

The recoverable (service) amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair valueless costs to sell. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Itisreasonably possible that the assumptions may change which may
then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of tangible
assets.

Provisions

Provisions are measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows required to seftle the
obligation. Inthe process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in the future
to seftle the provision management considers the weighted average possibility of the potential outcomes of
the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different potential outcomes are of a
provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then assigns a
weighting factor of each of these outcomes will materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of
the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are then added together to arrive at the weighted
average value of the provisions.

Post-retirement benefits

The costs of the benefits and the present value of the post retirement benefit liabilities depend on a number
of factors that are determined by an actuarial valuation using a number of assumptions.

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and ifs long fem
natfure, a defined benefit obligationis hugely sensitive to changesin these assumptions.

Any changes in these assumptions willimpact the charge to the Performance Statement and the Position
Statement. Allassumptions are reviewed at eachreporting date.

Effective interest rate
The National Museum used the prime inferest rate to discount future cash flows.
Allowance for impairment

Forreceivables animpairmentlossisrecognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence thatit
isimpaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial
recognition.

Value in use of cash generating assets

The museum reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changesin circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped atf the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are
indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for
each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of tangible assets are
inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of
factors, together with economic factors such asinflation andinterest.

Value in use of non-cash generating assets

The museumreviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changesin circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. |If there are indications that impairment may have
occurred, the remaining service potential of the asset is defermined. The most appropriate approach
selected to determine the remaining service potential is dependent on the availability of data and the
nature of the impairment.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
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e itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
enfity; and
e the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable o
bring the asset fo the location and condition necessary for it fo be capable of operating in the manner
infended by management. Trade discounts andrebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange fransaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is
the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and
costsincurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, orservice it. If areplacement costisrecognisedinthe
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur
such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes
otherthan the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the
itemis in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intfended by
management.

ltfems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment.

Maijor inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment
and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of
property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipmentis carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to
their estimatedresidual value.

The usefullives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the itemis depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service
potential are expected to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is
reviewed atleast at eachreporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity expectations about
the residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any
such indication exists, the entity revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The
changeis accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
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The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits orservice potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain orloss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the entity holds forrentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course
of activities, are fransferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assetfs are available-for-sale.
Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised asrevenue. All cash flows on these assets are includedin
cash flows from operating activitiesin the cash flow statement.

The entity separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the
notesto the financial statements (see note 3).

1.5 Heritage assets
An item is recognised as a heritage asset in terms of GRAP 103 when:
- it meets the definition of an asset.

- it meefts the definition of a heritage asset.
- itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the

entity and
- its costs can be measured reliably.

A heritage assetis an asset which have cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or
arfistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit or present and future generations.

A heritage asset is derecognised when it is disposed off or when no future economic benefits or potential is
expected.

Any gain orlossisrecognised in surplus or deficit.

Heritage assets are initially measured at cost unless the heritage assets were obtained through a non-
exchange transaction, then it willbe measured at fair value at date of acquisition.

Heritage assets are subsequently measured according fo the cost model.

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Heritage assets are not depreciated due to the uncertainty regarding their estimated
usefullives.

Initial measurement

Heritage assets are measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value
as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of heritage assefs are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent to initial recognition, certain classes of heritage assets, i.e.
artworks, are measured using the revaluation model. Application of the revaluation modelresultsin carrying
classes of heritage assets atre-valued amounts.

The National Museum has elected the cost model and shall apply this policy to the following classes of
heritage assefts:

¢ Natural History
e Cultural History and
e Library Books

The National Museum has elected the revaluation model and shall apply this policy to the following classes
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of heritage assets: Artworks (Anindependent revaluation will be conducted afterevery 3-5 years).

Depreciation for these classes of heritage assets is adjusted proportionately for the revaluation increases
and decreases upon revaluation of the items of heritage assets. Revaluation increases/decreases are
recognised in the revaluation reserve within the statement of changes in net assets. Where the revaluation
model is applied, it is done so over a period of 3- 5 years according to heritage assets policy of the National
Museum for the entire class of assefts.

Impairment

The National Museum tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An
assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable
amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount) and animpairmentlossis charged to the statement of Financial Performance.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined if no impairment had been recognised. A reversal of the
impairmentisrecognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed off or when there are
no further economic benefits orservice potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as a difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

The following assets are notrecorded in the Statement of Financial Position:

Land and buildings made available to the National Museum in terms of section 9 of the Cultural Institutions
Act, 1998 (ActNo.119 of 1998).

(Buildings owned by the Department of Public Works are made available to the National Museum in order to
performits functions)

1.6 Financial instruments

A financialinstrumentis any contract that givesrise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
aresidualinterest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or uncollectibility.

A concessionary loanis aloan granted to orreceived by an entity on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation.

Currencyriskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changesin foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an enfity’s
statement of financial position.

A derivativeis afinancialinstrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

¢ |ts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other
variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to
the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

¢ [trequires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for
other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market
factors.

e |tisseftled at afuture date
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The effective interest methodis a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments orreceipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculationincludes all fees and points paid orreceived between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions),
fransaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the
expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare
cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument
(or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual
term of the financial instfrument (or group of financialinstruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing partiesin an arm'slength fransaction.

Afinancial assetis:
e cash;
e aresidual interest of another entity; or
e a confractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Afinanciallliability is any liability thatis a confractual obligation fo:
¢ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
* exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to
the entity.

Interestraterisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changesin marketinterestrates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financialliabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitmentis a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk.

Other priceriskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument orits issuer, or factors affecting
allsimilar financialinstruments traded in the market.

Afinancial assetis past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Aresidual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Aresidualinterestincludes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
e equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
¢ a formal designation of a fransfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the
fransaction as forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the confribution occurs or af the time
of the contribution; or
* a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial
interestin the net assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of

a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the
entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
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Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

* the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

* are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financialinstruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
* derivatives;
¢ contingent consideration of an acquirer in a fransfer of functions between entities not under common
conftrol to which the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common
Control (GRAP 106) applies
e combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
* instfruments held for frading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
-itisacquired orincurred principally for the purpose of selling orrepurchasingitin the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
togetherand forwhich there is evidence of arecent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are
designated at fair value atinitialrecognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or
financialinstruments at cost.

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using frade date accounting.
Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using frade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
e the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
* the enfity fransfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or
¢ the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell
the asset in its entfirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and
without needing toimpose additionalrestrictions on the fransfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those fransferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the fransfer date. Newly created rights and
obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration
received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of
the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognitionin its entirety and retains the
right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that
servicing confract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for
performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the
fee to bereceivedis expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset
is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying
amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a fransfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the enfity
obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity
recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the
sum of the considerationreceivedisrecognisedin surplus or deficit.
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If the tfransferred asset is part of alarger financial asset and the part fransferred qualifies for derecognitionin
its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those
parts, on the date of the tfransfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that
continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus
or deficit.

If a fransfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continues to recognise the transferred asset in its
entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity
recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither
the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue
orexpense in surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is
recognised asrevenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction
costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where
applicable] relating to distributions to holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the International Accounting Standard on Income
Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
andintends either to settle on anet basis, ortorealise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.

1.7 Tax
Tax expenses

The entity is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10(1)(cA)(i) of the Income Tax Act. Donations made to
or by the entity are exempt from Donations Taxin ferms of sec fion 56(1) (h) of the Income Tax Act.

The entity is exempt from payment of Estate Duty in terms of section 4(h) of the Estate Duty Actno. 45 of 1995.
The entityis notregistered for value added taxin terms of section 24(1) of the Value Added Tax Act of 1991.
1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each
elementseparately.

Financeleases - lessor

The entity recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets
are presented as areceivable at an amount equalto the netinvestmentin the lease.

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
entity’snetinvestmentin the finance lease.
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Financeleases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

The discountrate usedin calculating the present value of the minimum lease paymentsis the .

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingentrents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessor
Operatinglease revenue isrecognised asrevenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negoftiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease
revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as areduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Income forleasesis disclosed underrevenue in statement of financial performance.

Operatingleases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised
asan operating lease asset orliability.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange
fransaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and netrealisable value.

Inventories are measured af the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
« distribution at no charge or fora nominal charge; or
* consumptionin the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Currentreplacement costis the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their presentlocation and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily intferchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated forspecific projectsis assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost ofinventoriesis assigned using the formula. The same cost formulais used for allinventories having a
similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are
recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as areduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversaloccurs.
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1.10 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service isrendered, such
as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are
recognisedin the periodin which the service isrendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entittement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence
OCCuUrs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is alegal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as aresult of past performance.

Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined
contribution plans where the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined
contributionretirement benefit plan.

Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefitsis determined using the projected credit method.
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately foreach plan.

Considerationis given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the
interim valuationis performed at an earlier date.

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are
otherwise amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become
vested.

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or
loss exceeds ten percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair
value of the plan assets (the corridor), that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected
average remaining service lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are
notrecognised.

Gains or losses on the curtailiment or settflement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is
demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement.

Wheniitis virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is
measured at fair value. In all otherrespects, the asset is freated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or
deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit planis presented as the net of the amountrecognised for a
reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
costs, andreduces by the fair value of plan assets.

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductionin future contributions to the plan.

1.11 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
* the entity has a present obligation as aresult of a past event;
e it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required fo seftle the obligation; and
* areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
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Where the effect of fime value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expendifures expected to berequired to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tfime value of money and
therisks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
arereversed ifitis nolonger probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. Thisincreaseisrecognised as aninterest expense.

A provisionis used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are notrecognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

If an entity has a confract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation torestructure arises only when an entity:

* has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying atfleast:
-the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
-the principallocations affected;
-thelocation, function, and approximate number of employees who willbe compensated for services

being terminated;

-the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
-when the plan willbe implemented; and

* has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to

implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those
that are both:

* necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and

* not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or tfransfer of an operation until the entity is committed to
the sale or transfer, thatis, there is a binding arrangement.

After their inifial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

* the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

¢ the amountinitially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note.

A financial guarantee confract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Loan commitmentis a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and areliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires
judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
« financial difficulty of the debtor;
* defaults ordelinquenciesininterest and capitalrepayments by the debtor;
¢ breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term
and the ability of the debtor to seftle its obligation on the amended terms; and
e a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment)
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thatimpact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a feeisreceived by the entity forissuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity considers that an outflow of economic
resourcesis probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:
e the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assefts;
and
* the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisationrecognised
in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions

1.12 Commitments

ltfems are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will
normally resultin the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required inrespect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosedin a note to
the financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
* Conftracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for
computer or building maintenance services); and
¢ Confracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity —
therefore salary commitmentsrelating fo employment contracts or social security benefit commitments
are excluded.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those
inflowsresultin anincrease in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished,
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the
other party inexchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing partiesin an arm'slength transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts
and volumerebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

¢ the entity has fransferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

¢ the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

¢ itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the fransaction will flow to
the entity; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the fransaction at
the reporting date. The outcome of a fransaction can be estimated reliably when all the following
conditions are satisfied:
e the amount ofrevenue can be measuredreliably;
¢ itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the fransaction will flow to
the entity;
* the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measuredreliably; and
¢ the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

90



When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any
otheracts, therecognition of revenue is postponed until the significant actis executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue isrecognised only to the extent of the expensesrecognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the tfransaction at the reporting
date. Stage of completionis determined by.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar
distributionsisrecognised when:
* [tis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity, and
* The amount of the revenue can be measuredreliably.

Interestisrecognised in surplus or deficit using the effective interestrate method
1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an
entity, whichrepresents anincrease in net assets, other thanincreasesrelating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on fransferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potentialembodiedin the assetisrequired to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic
benefits orservice potential must be returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the assetin pursuit of its objectives
and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or
use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether
ornotthey pay taxes.

Fines are economic benefits or service potentialreceived orreceivable by entities, as determined by a court
orotherlaw enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws orregulations.

Non-exchange tfransactions are transactions that are not exchange fransactions. In a non-exchange
fransaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal
value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in
exchange.

Restrictions on fransferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a tfransferred asset
may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potentialis required to be returned
to the fransferorif not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon
the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions
that are not available to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be
subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance
with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or
other penaltiesimposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other
than taxes.
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Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange fransaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue,
excepttothe extent that aliability is also recognised inrespect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a
non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised
andrecognises an amount of revenue equal to thatreduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assefs
recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to seftle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the
increase in net assets, if any, recognised asrevenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the
tfaxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as
revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of fransfers
when the tfransferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an
asset.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of fransfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an
asset and satisfy the criteria forrecognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that
the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be
measuredreliably.

Servicesin-kind

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the entity recognise services in-kind that are significant to ifs
operations and/or service delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the
assets can be measured reliably. Servicesin kind are measured at the fair value amount calculated as user
charges by the Department of Public Work and approved by National Treasury.

Where services in-kind are noft significant to the entity’s operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or
do not satisfy the criteria for recognition, the enfity disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received
during the reporting period.

1.15Cost of sales

Wheninventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories isrecognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all surplus (deficit) of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
periodin which thereversaloccurs.

The related cost of providing servicesrecognised asrevenue in the current periodisincluded in cost of sales.

Conftract costs comprise:
e costs thatrelate directly to the specific contract;
e costs that are aftributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract on a
systematic andrational basis; and
e such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customerunder the terms of the contract.
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1.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.17 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the
currentyear.

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in
accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as
revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.19 Iregular expenditure

Iregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised
expendifure, incurred in confravention of or that is not in accordance with the requirement of any
applicable legislation, including -

(a) thisAct;or

(b) the State TenderBoard Act, 1968 (ActNo.86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) anyprovinciallegislation providing for procurement proceduresin that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in tferms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the
PFMATrequires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Iregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned
before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately
in the iregular expenditure register. In such aninstance, no further actionis also required with the exception
of updating the note to the financial statements.

Iregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which
condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No
further actionis required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following
financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the
amount condoned.

Iregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular
expenditure register. If liability for the iregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account
must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the
amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting
authority may write off the amount as debtimpairment and disclose suchin the relevant note to the financial
statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must
remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note o the financial
statements and updated accordingly in the iregular expenditure register.

1.20 Research and development expenditure
Expenditure onresearchisrecognised as an expense whenitisincurred.

An asset arising from developmentisrecognised when:
e itistechnically feasible to complete the asset so that it willbe available for use or sale.
¢ there is anintention fo complete and use orsellit.
e there is an ability to use orsellit.
« it willgenerate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
e there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
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orsellthe asset.
* the expenditure aftributable to the asset during its development can be measuredreliably.

1.21 Budgetinformation

The National Museum'’s budget is compiled on a cash basis with an economic classification. It covers the
same period as the Financial Statements, namely 01 Aprilto 31 March of each year.

1.22 Related parties

Arelated party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significantinfluence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common conftrol, orjoint
control.

Controlis the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fromits
activities.

Joint controlis the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing conftrol (the venturers).

Related party fransactionis a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a
related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity,
butis not control over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances
where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, orbe
influenced by that personin their dealings with the entfity.

1.23 Events afterreporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised forissue. Two types of events can
be identified:
* those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date);and
¢ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after
thereporting date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the
reporting date once the event occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such

estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could
influence the economic decisions of users tfaken on the basis of the financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand thousand 2021 2020

£, New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpratations effactive and adopted in the current year

There were no Standards and Interpretations effective in the curent year, The entity has thus not adopted any standards
and interpretations.

Z.£ Standards and Interpratations early adopted
The entity has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations.
2.3 Standards and imterpretations issued, but not yet effective

The =ntity has not applied any standards and interpretations, whicn have been published ard are mandalory for the entity's
accounting pericds beginning an or after April 1, 2021 ar later periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand thausand 2021 2020

3. Property. plant and equipment {continued)

Other disclosures

Rental revenue gensrated from appreciative artworks 11 11
Expenses that generatad rental revenue

Direct operating expenses LY 43
Expenszes that did not generated rental revenue

Cumulative expenditure recognis2d in the carrying valug of aporeciative artworks 3 A48

Terms and conditions
Artworks categorised as apprecative artworks are:

All kinds of artworks, art collections or individual pieces, including vanous paintings and statues, acquired, and is held primarily
as a store of wealth.

The primary goal for acquiring these artworks is for investment purposes and for the purpose of storing value. In the period of
which the artwork is appreciating in value {usually a period of five years), the entity leases these artworks to abtain rentals in
that period.

There is ro existznce of restrictions on the realisability of Appreciative Artwork or the remittance of revenue and proceeds of
disposal.

There are no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop Appreciative Artwork or for repairs, meintenance, or
enhancements.

After the "ARTBANK recognizges the artwork 23 an item of Appraciative Artwaork, the artwork shall be measured at fair value.

Through censideration of the following the "ARTBANK® corsiders that that the fair value of the Appreciative Artwork cannat
reliably be determined on a continuing basis:

+ All the artworks are unigque, thus not comparable;

« The artworks comprise of emerging South Afqcan arists;

= The artworks serve the purpose of providing opporiunities;

+ Mo assurance that the artworks will be leased; and

+ The artwark is held for the purpose to foster and appreciate.

The "ARTBANK" determines that the fair value of the artwerk will ke reliably measurable on the disposal data.

Thus, the artwork shall be measured at cost until the day of disposal whereby the "ARTBANK” shall remeasure the artwork to
the fair value — disposal price.

The entity did not dispose of Aporeciativie Artworks carried at fair value

The entity did not dispese of Aporeciative Artworks not eamed at fair value.

Thare were no gaing or losges recogrised fram the sale of Appreciative Artworks.

Pledged as security

There is no property, plant and equipmant that was pledged as security for the financial year ended 31 March 2021,

Depraciafion rates
ltem Depreciation method Average useful life
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand thausand 2021 2020

3. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Fixturzs Straight-line 10 years
Furniture and fittings Straight-line 5 years
Metar vehicles Straigat-line B years
Cffice equipment Straigit-line 8 years
IT equipment Straignt-ling 3 years
Library books Straight-line 10 years

Assets subject to finance lease {(Met carrying amount)

Other equipment 1255 1.401

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
ingcludad in Statament of Financial Perfermanca
Fepairs and Maintenance 48 052 62 143

The depraciatian relating te the leased asset ameunts ta B3 000,
Heritage assets

The Mational Museum holds heritage assets which are measured in accordance with GRAP 103, During the financial year,
heritage assets amounted to R139 422 000. Please see balow for a detail of haritage assets acearding to their class.

Heritage agsets may not be disposed off, unless written approval is obtained from the Minister of Spors, Arts and Culture. No
cther restrictions on title of the Museum to the heritage assets exist.

Mo heritage assets were pledged as security for abilities,

A register containing nformation recuired by section 51 of the Public Finance Managemeant Act is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.

Art works

The Mational Museum {"Lender"h agrees to lend an the Borrowsr agrees to borrow the Art Works or the terms and cenditicns
a2t ot in the Loan Agreement.

The Parties have agreed that the Art Works will be lent on 3 temporary loan basis to the Berrower for the sole purpese of
uninterupted public display and appreciation at the premises of the Borrower.

The Lender reserves the right to recall any Art Wark at any time ugon the giving of reasonable notice in writing to the Borrower.
The Lender and the Borrawer will jointly prepare Condition Reports for each At Wark at the start and at the end of the Loan.

The Barrower must not carry out any changes lo the Art Works specifically including cleaning, retouching, repairs, or
restoration, without prior written notifization from and/or censant of the Lender.

The Lender shall be responsible far arranging and paying for insurance cover (including any additionzl insurance réguirgc in
relation to the ranspart) of the Art Woks at all times {“the insurance").

Should there be any breach of the terms of the lpan agreement, either Party may terminate thiz agreement by giving 30 days’
notice 1o the other in writing with or without a claim for damages occasioned by such breach.
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4. Heritage assets {continuad)
Heritage assets which fair value cannot be reliably measured

The following heritage assets were not recognized due to a relable measuremani not being possible on initial recognition is as
foliows:

Acarology

Tha Acarology collaction meets the defirition of 8 heritage asset as it is contralled by NMB and offers scientific reseanch valie
to other institutions, students and academics, thus bringing service benefits o the NMB. However nether the cost nor the fair
valus of the collecticn or its parts can be reliakly measured. The collection will be declared as a heritage asset as a whols with
a zero monatary valug, The South African MNational Bioinformatics Institutions {(SANBI) supplied a letter recommending that the
collection shaould be declared as a heritage with a zerc monetary value.

Arachnology

Althougk there is a trade in certain large and/or rare arachnid, either pinned or alive, the collection housed at NMB is entirely a
wet collection and does not contain any specimans with decorative assthatic qualities. Thus the specimens have no
commercial value and their cost cannat be reliably measured. The Scuth Afiican MNational Bicinformatics Institute (SAMNBI)
supplied a l=tter recommending that the collection should be declared as heritage with @ zero monetary value.

Botany

The Botany collaction meets the definiticn of a hertage asset a5 it is controlled by NMB and institutions, students, academics,
thus bringing service benefits to MME, Hewever neither the cost nar the fair valuz of this collaction or its parts can be reliably
measzured. The collection will be declared as a heritage asset as a whole with a zere monetary value. There is a trade in
prassad flowars that have aesthetic qualities as werks of art and 25 antique ilems, but there is 3 total absence of trade far
these scientilic specimers. The South African Nalional Bioinformalics Inslilule supplied a letler recommending thal the
callection should be declared as a hertage with a 2ere monegtary valua,

Entamalogy

The Entemalogy collection meets the definition of a haritage as=et as it is controlled by MMB and offers scentific research
valus to other nstitutions, students and academics. thus bringing service bensfits to NME. However neither the cost nor the fair
value of this collection or its parts can he raliably measurad. The collection will be declared as a heritage asset as a whole with
a zerg monetany value,

Within this collection there is a collection of Celophon beetles, These are nighly collectablz and can feteh high prices on the
black mar<at, but there iz no legal trade in them in South Africa. Thare is no commercial value to the rect of the collection and
no reliable way to measure its cosk

Mammalogy and Florisbad

The Mammaody collection meests the definition of a heritage asset as it is contralled by NMB and oers scientific ressarch
value to other nstitutions, students and academics. thus bringing service benafits to MMEB. However neither the cost nor the fair
walus of this collection or its parts can be reliably measured, except in the case of the axidermy specimens. These will be fair
valuzd. The remainirg sub-collections held 3 scientific value ang no market valuz. The ccllection with the exception of
taxidermy will b2 declared as heritage assets with & zero monstary value, The South African National Bioinformatics Institute
{SANEBI supplied a letter recommending that the collection should be declared as heritages with a zerg meneiary value,

Palaeontology & Geology

Ihis collection consists of fossils and a collection of bones and skeletcns used for comparative research purposes. It 1= illegal
to trade In fossils and cannot be reliably measurad. The collection will be declared as heritage with a Zero monetary rating. The
aauth African Mational Gininfomatics [nstitute (SANBI) supplied a letter recommending that the collection should be declared
as heritage with a zero monetary value.

Ormithology
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4. Heritage assets {continued)

The Ornithalogy callection mests the definition of a heritage asset as itis controlled by NMB and offars sciertific research values
to other institutions, studants and academics. thus bringing sendce bensfits to NMB, However neither the cost nor the fair value
af thie collection or ite parts can be relisbly measured, except in the caze of the taxidermy specimens. These will ke fair valued.
The remaining sub-collections hold 8 scientific value and no market value. The caollection with the exception to t@xidermy will be
declared herilage asssls with a s2re monelary value. The Seuth Alrican Malional Bioinfermalics Inslilule (SANED supplied a
letier recommending that the callectian snould be declared as heritage with a zero monetary value,

Herpeatology

The Heraetology collection meets the definition of a heritage assel as it is controlled by NMB and offers scientific research
valus to other nstitutions, students and academics thus bringing service bensfits to NMB. However neither the cost nor the fair
value of this collection or its parts can be reliably measured The collection will be declared as a heritage asset as a whale with
a zero maongtary valug. This collection consisis of wet specimens preserved in alcohol and not displayed with any aesthetic
sensibilities. There is record of 8 market for aesthetically displayed specimens n glass dioramas, but this is not the case with
this collection which is of sciertific value. The South African Mational Bisinformatics |nstitute [SANBL supplied & [ster
recommending that the collection should ba daciarad ag heritage with a zerc monatary valua,

8.  Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit plan

The defined benafit liakility as disclosed below are represented by two different 208t - employment benefits, NMore of the
benefits set out below are externslly funded.

Post-retirement medical aid plan

Aclive members receive a ixed subsidy of 0% of medical aid contnbutions dunng the currenl working year, up o a specified
maximum emplover canfribution. The spouse or adult depandant of an active member is enfitled to a 65.67% subsidy of their
contributions. This proportion of the subsicy will continue to be paid in the event of the principal mermber's death.

Continuation members receive a fixed subsidy of 607 of medical aid contributions during the current working year. up to a
specified maximurm employer contribution. The spouse or adult dependant of a continuation member is entitled to a2 65.57%
subsidy of their contributions.

Pension benefits

Mormal Retirement

In respact of 8 member entitied to benefits on a defined contnbution basis, a pensian that can be secured by the members
Equitable Share frorm an insurer becemes payable. The value of the pension will nol be less than 1.8% of the highest average
salary for each vear of pensionatle sarvice for members with a minimum pension guarantasa.

In respact of @ member entiied (o definad benefits, an annual pension equal 1o 2.8% of the hghast average salary for each
yaar of pensionable service becomes payakle.

Highest average salary is defined as the gverage of the member's pensionable salary over the twenty four morths of his
pensionable service that delivers the highest resulf.

Early Retirement

Defined contribut on basis members may retire from 5. The minimum pension guarantee is calculated as akove, but reduced
by 0.255% for each month with which actual retirement precedes the attainmert of age 65.
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5. Employee benefit ebligations {continued)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation are as fellows:
Dpening halance 41,219 36,010
Contrbutions by plan participants 8,107 {3,280)
Exchange differences 203 =l
Benafitz paid {38,548 {5.573)
Actuarial (nainsflosses 12837 (11.763)
Fast service costs 11,739 34,305
Met sxpense recognisad in the statement of financial performance . {4.338)
36,047 41,210
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2021 Pension Mediczl aid Total
fund
Qpening halance 14,5349 26,378 41,219
Interest costs 5,153 2,004 8,107
Current service cost 440 453 893
Benefits paid (expectad) [37.087) [7.461) (35 h4B)
Actuarial {GainkyLoss 10,113 2,924 12,637
Past Service Cos: 11,739 - 11,739
Defined benefit abligation as at 31 March 2021 5167 30,348 36,047
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 Mamch 2020 Pension Medical aid Total
fund
Cpening balance 5,492 25 679 3117
Interest costs (10,280} 2 600 (8.300)
Current service cost 420 48 il
Benefits paid (expected) {4,389} [1,1684) (9,573)
Actuarial {Gain)Loss (10,498 [1,264) {11,763)
Fast Service Cos: 34,505 - 34,805
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2020 14,639 26 379 41 218
Defined benefit obligaticn as at 31 March 20139 Pension Medical aid Total
fund
Opening balance 6,505 25 562 32 257
Interest costs 3144 2 165 5,330
Current service cost 200 G2% 1,529
Benefits paid (expected) {1,425} (802} (2,327)
Actuarial {Gainyloss {7,403 (1,708) (9,198)
Fast Service Cost 3,580 - 3,880
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2019 5452 26,679 31,171
Estimated future contributions Pension Medical aid Total
fund
Cpening balance 5,187 30,545 36,047
Interest costs 224 3674 6,722
Current service cost - a11 1,192
Benefits paid (expected) - [ .682) [2.810)
Estimated future contributions 2421 d3,a01 41,151
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5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Assumptions used on 31 March 2021:

Assumptions used at the reperting date:

Actual return an plan assets - % 11.31 %
Discount rates used 12 68 %% 11.71
Expectad rate of return on assels 6.865 % B85
Expected rate of raturn on reimbursement rights 5.50 % 550 %
Actual return an rembursement rights 4964 % 700 S
hedical cost trend rates 27T % 8.84 %
Expected increase in salaries 403 % 4,03
Expected pension increases 11.71 % 11.71 %
Froportion of employees opting for eady retirement 488 % 4,88 %
Expacted increase in nealthcare costs 263 % 263 %
Future changes in maximum state healihcare henefits g.14 % 5,85 %
Other material actuarial assumptions [provide details] 10.00 % 10,00 %
Mertality SARL-30 SARS-00
Expected retirement age (in yaars) 62 years G2 years

Azzumed health care costs trend have significant effect on the amounts recegnized in surplus for the year. The value of the
liability could also be overstated or understated, depending on the extent to which actual experience differs from the

assumptions adopted.

Caovernment bond yields were used when setting the best-estmate discount rate assumption for health care cost and pension.

Cther assumptions

Assumed Fealthcare cost trends rates have a signifcant efect on the amcunts recognised in surplus or deficit, A one

percentage paint change in assumed healthcare cost trends rates would have the fallowing affects:

Effect on thz definec benefit oblgation
Effect on the aggregate of the senvice cost
Effect on the agoregate of the intersst cost

Amounts far the current and previous four years are as follows:

2021
000
Definad benefit ohligaticn 36,047
Experience adustments on plan lisbilities 1,142
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One One
percentage  percentage
paint increase point
decrease
34,500 27,745
B2 437
4,345 471
2020 20149 2018 2017
‘oG ‘0o ‘000 ‘000
36,380 31171 32257 44,811
(9, Ta0) aR2 (12.613) (12,28
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6. Operating lease asset

Gross investment in the |ease due

- not later than one year 15 15
- laler than one year and not later than five years 43 a8
58 T3

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- not later than one year 15 15
- later than one year and not later than five years 43 58
58 73

The Mational Museum {"Lender"} agrees to lend an the Borrower agrees to bomrow the At Works on the terme and conditions
szt out in the Loan Agreement.

The Parties have agreed that the A Works will be lent on a temporary loan basis to the Borrower for the aole purpose of
uninterrupted public display and appreciation at the premises of the Borrower,

The Lender reserves the right to recall any ArtWork at any time upon the gving of reasonaale natice in writing to the Borrower.
The Lender and the Borrower will jointly prepare Condition Reports for each Art Woaork at the start and at the end of the Loan.

The Borrower musi not carry oot any changes to the At Works specifically including clearing, retouching, repairs, or
resloration, withoul prior written notiicatien from andfor consent of the Lender.

The Lender shall be responsible for arranging and paying for insurance cover (including any additional insurance required in
relation to the transport) of the Art Woks at all times {"the insurance").

Sheuld there be any breach of the terms of the loan agreement, either Party rmay terminate this agreement by giving 30 days'
notice to the ather in writing with or withcut a claim for damages eccasioned by sueh breach.

T. Inventories

Inventories: Shop &9 il

Inventories: Stores 40 29

104 105

Inventory pledged as security

There was no inventory pladged as security for the year ended 37 March 2021.

Inventory expensed

Inventary recognised as expense during the year 11 a0

8. Receivahbles from exchange transactions

Deposils paid 20 20

Trade receivables from exchange fransactions 1,640 a44

Creditcrs with debit balances 293 138
1,953 T03
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20

2024

8. Receivables from exchange transactions [continued)

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trace and cther receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At March 31, 20217,
451 512 (2020: 309 441) ware past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due B.515 26,145
2 months past cue 451 512 25.000
3 months past cus 451,512 309,447
9. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents consist of:
Cashon kand 11 11
Bans baances 19,408 454
Investments A7 A45 45.568
Call acocounts B3,223 60,748
130,088 106,884
The entity had the following bank accounts
Aczount number ! description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, harch 31, March 31,
2021 2020 20158 2021 2020 2019
ABSA Cheque Accaunt 19,408 456 g3 19.408 456 B33
ADSA Call Account 53,223 af, 749 26,5594 63,223 G0, 749 oG,584
Petty Cash g g a g o 8
Float 2 2 Z 2 2 2
Total 82,642 61,216 57,238 82,642 61,216 57,238
The entity had the following investment accounts
Account number / description Bank siatement balances Cash book balances
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2021 2020 20g 2021 2020 2019
Transformation fund 1,646 1,584 1,475 1.644 1,584 1.470
Muzeum CFD 44 203 43,220 40,340 44 803 43 220 40,340
Furchase of Art Works CRD a9s Bi4 a0e £08 B854 ana
Tatal 47,447 45,668 42,625 47,447 45,668 42,625
10. Payablez from exchanpge transactions
Fayables from exchange transactions 3538 BTT
Accruals at year enc /g 06
Accounts payakle: Leave 2483 1.742
Accounts paysbles: Bonus 933 Ba6
Deposits held 162 132
Union contral accounts = 4
Debtors with credit kalancas 237 121
Social club: Employes contributions 21 f
Skills Developrment Levy 38 E
4,840 3,864
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11. Provisians
Reconciliation of provisions - 2021
Operning Additions Total

Balance
Frovision for Municipal Charges - 1.724 1,724

The provision for municipal service charge relates to the legal abligation of the municipal services consumead by the National
Museum and paid for by the Depanment of Public Werks and Infrastructure (DPWI) and in turn the Mational Museum would
reimburse DPVW| bazed on the actusl charge plus 5% management fag, the invcices provided were inaccurate and incormplete,
the provision was determined uzing actual service charge received fram DPWI-Fres State.

12. Payables from non-exchange transactions

Department of Sport, Arts & Culture 18, 000

On 29 March 2021 and ovarpaymeant was receivad from DSAC due to an error during the processing of the amcunt intended for
the Mational Museumn. A refund was then requested on 14 April 2021 by the Department which was not processed at year end.

13. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants

Unspent cenditional grants and receipts

Capital Works Allocaton Grant 13,229 8385
Arl Bark Grant §.294 5,225
National Research Foundation Grant 4016 3.836
GRAP 103 Grant 45 344 45,386
COE: Grant (B Cohen) bE -

68 830 63,332

Moverment during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year G5, 097 G2 08T
Additions during the year B .GhG 5.248
Income recognition during the year (4,814} (3.983)

68,939 63,332

The grants received and disclosed as defermed income (unspent conditional grants) are grants that have conditions and will be
recognised as revenues when the conditions are met, Flease refer to the different contracts for the conditions and further details
on the grants on note 20 for the purposes and brief summary on the specifications of the grant.
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14. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 48 45
- in s2cond to fifth year inclusiva 33 141
141 189
less; futurz finance charges 22) (371
Prasent value of minimum leaze payments 119 152

Frasent value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 37 33
- insacond to fifth year inclusiva g2 119
118 152

The Matinnal Musaum is lsasing a photo-copying machine on a finance lease for a period of over 60 months.
The lease term iz & years (80 months) and the implicit effective borrowing rate was 12%.

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date, All leases have dxed repayments and no amangements have been enterad inte for
contingent rent.

The National Museurn ebligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge aver the leased assats.

15. Total revenue received

Arfbank income 206 113
Fantal incoama 2 367
Frojects income 241 568
Trading revenue 34 2T
Intzrest recsived - investmeant 4,281 T.726
Transferz and zuosidies 57,958 53,735
Free Use of Buildings 3,084 37T
Lozal and foreign aid assistance - q
Gain on disposal of assets and liahilities 82,147 g
Actuarial gains 272 11.763
External Funding - 453

72135 78,271

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:

Arlbank income 208 113
Fental income 2 ABY
Frojact income 241 L]
Gain on disposal of assets = ]
Trading revenue 34 271
Intzrest received 4 281 7725
Actuarial gain - 11.763

4764 20,303

The amaunt included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Taxation revenue

Transfer revenus

Transfers and suosidics 57 058 53,735
Free Use of Buildings 3,084 3T
Lozal and foreign aid assistance - g
Gain on disposal of assets 5,147 -
External Funding 272 433

67,371 57,068
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16. Presidential Employment Stimulus Programme
Al Bank Income 3,582 -
Oliewanhuis income 1,565 2
5147 -
&rl Bark expenze 3,38 -
Cliewenhdis expenssa 1.012 -
4,393 -
17. Other income
Rental income 2 367
Frojzcts incame 241 bk
Trading revenue 34 271
27 584
18. Trading revenue
Entrance fees: Museum 27 137
Entrance fees: Freshfond 1 3
Ehop s3les 11 110
Olwh: Education income - 2
Freshford: other income - 1
Qlwh: Carousel income 1 17
Office admin incame 1 1
34 27
18. Interest received
Interest revenue
Intarest: Museum CPD 1,835 3,230
Interest: Call account ABSA 2445 4,595
4,281 T, 725

The amcunt included in Investment revenue arsing from exchange transactions amounted to B3 172 976.28.
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20. Transfers and subsidies received

Operating grants

Subsidy received: Annual 50,992 47 553
Subsidy received: Operating leases 2.2m 2,112
Subsidy received: Municipal Servces 2,2 2,760
Transfers to revenue: Other grants 1773 1,310

57,058 53,735

Conditional and Unconditional

Included in akove are the following grants and subsidies transferred:

Unconditional grants transferred <0,982 47,553
Conditional grants transferred B.965 8,182
57,958 53,735

Capital Works Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of yvear 8,685 2.451

Current-year receipts 5.081 &00

Conditions meat - transferred o revenue (737) {186}
13,220 §.885

The approprigted funds should be utilised for the implementation of the capital works programme {including oroject planning
and consultation fees). Funds received should be transferred tc a separate account which is dedicated only for the capital
works budoet. The detailed scope of wark and cost breakdown should ke submitted as soon as the professional team is
appointed and the pianning phase is completed.

MNaticnal Art Bank Grant

EBalance unspent at beginning of vear 5225 4,288

Current-year receipts 3,173 3.254

Conditions met - transferred lo revenue 12,104 (2,317
6,294 5,225

The Art Bank funding iz ring-faaced ang is to be utilised for the following key perfarmance areas:
«  Curation of the Art Bank o South Africa Visual Arl Collection

+ Business Development of the Art Bank

*  Public Relations and Marketing of the Art Bank

= Cperations of the Art Bank

NRF Profezsional Development Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of vear 3,835 3,883
Current-year receipts 183 272
Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue (120 {178)
Frior pericd arror 147 {150}

4,016 3,838

The Mational Museumn has the responsibility to werify and certify the aporoprialeness, cormmpleteness and comrectness of all
information submitied by their researchers to the MRF as part of zpplications for funding. The Maticnal Museumn shall provide
appropriate human resource, infrastruciure and support services to ensure the effective operation of the NRF funded research
projects within the nstitution.
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20. Transfers and subsidies received (continued)

GRAF 103 implementation grant

Balance unspent at beginning of vear 45 385 45,4356
Conditions met - transferred (o revenue (423 ra0)
45,244 45,386

The Turds are ring-fenced and can only be agplied 1© projecls relaled o GRAP 103, The Nalonal Museum is expeclisd 1o repaorl
guarterly regarding the utilisation of the funds and milestoneis) achioved.

NRF: Hugo-Coetzee Coastal mites

Current-year receipls 27 KL
Conditions mat - fransforred o revenus (27 (38]

Funds must be spent within the duration of funding perod otherwise it will revert back ta the NRF. A grant-holder must subymit
an annual progress report which can be ohtained from the NRF. At the end of the research project, the NEF will expect a final
repart about the outcomes of the research.

NREF: BothaBrink A0P Grant

Current-year receipts 200 1,12E
Conditioas met - transferred fo revenue (200 1,122}

Th Gral will be awarded for a pericd of One(1}) ¥Year Only for full-time research and may at the sole discretion of Centre of
Excellence, be renewed for the subseguent year(s) depending on the availability of funds and academic progress by the
Recipient. All Becipients are expected to submit posters andfor present their research. Participation in community engagement
acliviies may also be reguined.

MRF: B Cohen
Current-year receipts 21 -
Conditions met - transferred (o revenue 213 -

Conditiens still to be met - remain ligbilines {see note 13).

Municipal charpges grant

Current-year receipts 2912 2. 760
Conditions met - transferred (o revenue (1,183 (2,760}
Other (1,723 -

The purpase of this grant is for the paviment of municipality services incurred by National Museum.

Cperating leases grant

Current-year receipts 2281 2112
Conditions mat - transferred 1o revenue (25281 (2.112)
Other 247 -

The purpass of this grant is for the pavment of the buildings and parking bays leassd by the National Mussum.

COE Grant: B Cohen
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20. Transfers and subsidies received {continuad}
Current-year receipts ga -
Conditionz met - transferred o revenue (4 -
L1 -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see nete 13},
21. 5taff costs
Basic 32,9464 29,186
Bonus 2.671 2,236
Medical aid - company contributicns 4 250 4,118
UIF 206 184
=D0L 38 -
Leave pay provision charge 142 410
Defined contributen plans 1475 3,118
Cwertme payments 148 B2
Long-senvice awards 47 71
Housing benefits and allowances 1,781 1,702
Compensation Commissioner a7 53
Recruitment feas - 18
43,785 41,287
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer
Annual Remuneration oh4 235
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 168 37
Housing allowancea 15 4
Annual bonuz a5 -
1,283 2786
Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
Annual Remuneration 17V 1,145
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pensaion Funds 207 201
Housing allowanos 15 16
Annual hanus 112 -
1512 1,362
22, Finance costs
Senvice corcession arangsments 1,645 2,763
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£3. Other operating expenses
Administrative expenses G435 293
Art Bank expenses - 2
Asset expenses 281 -
Assets written off at camying value T -
Audit expenses gie 234
Bank charges 83 102
Cleaning B84 101
Cansulting and professional fees 115 134
Enternairment 11 24
Exhibitions 1558 475
Free use of buildings 3,004 377
Fuzl ard oil L B BT
GRAFP 103 expenses - 49
General expenses 1,459 2,081
Human Resaurce expenses L] 112
I T axpenses 329 294
lnsurance 704 GG
Inventory purchases 8 a5
Licenses 161 204
Maintenarce costs 1,101 B156
Municipal expenses 2,807 245
MNRF Hugo expenses 20 a8
Dffice expenses 232 305
Dperating lease expanses 2,528 1,365
Photocopiss g3 113
Security SB0 BYH
Telephone and fax 161 188
Travelling expenses 2 395
LIniforms 12 26
“Wacancy edvers expenses 24 40
17, 482 16,241
24, Auditers’ remuneration
External audit fees Ta2 a77
Internal auditors A4 17f
816 BS54
25. Operating deficit
Cperating deficit far the year is etated after accounting for the follawing
zain on sale of proparty, plant and equipment - a
Depreciztion 2,488 2414
Staff costs 45,054 43,314
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26. Cash generated from operations
[Deficit) surplus (13.473) 13,469
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization 2488 2414
Loss nn sale of assets and liahilitizs - {8
Bad debits g fiLt
Movements in retirement henefit assets and liabilities 14.112 (5,648)
Movements in provisions 1,724 -
Purchase of property, plant and squipment (2657} (2,038)
Cther non-cash itams 6,455 (G25)
Changes in working capital:
Inveniones (4} 12)
Receivables from excharge transactions (1,250) (162
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - HE
Payables from excharngs transactions oG 7obh
Unspent condidonal grants and receipts S.607 1,265
13,987 6,800
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2F. Commitments
Authorised operational expenditure
Already contracted for but not pravided for (Commitments within 1 year)
. Internal audit contract (Contract erded 31 March 2020) 5 54
* Leasing of photocopying machine [Contract ending 30 April 2024) 48 4d
. Security ervices (Contract ended 30 December 2020) - 1.229
- (Srass cutting & tree felling at Florishad (Contract ended 31 Octcbers 2020} - 79
- Brochure management {Sontract endsd 30 April 20200 - 36
+  Gardening scnices at OLWH [Contract cnded 21 March 2021) 47 284
» Maintenznce contract for Internst network systern (Centract enced 31 August - 46
2020
- Flanlech - Project Management HVAC installation (Contract ending 10 November 244 -
2021)
. Gardening services at Freshford (Contract ending 21 March 2022} g5 -
- Multiec - Maintenance of Generators (Contract ending 30 September 20213 15 -
- Museum Vehicle service (Contract ending 29 February 2022) 2] -
*  Supply of 5.H.E bins (Contact ending on 30 November 2021} 38 -
»  WANSA - PESP (Contract ended 31 March 2021} 1,430 -
- Lumacan - HVAC Installation (Contract ending 10 Movember 2027} Trav -
- Sardening - Freshford House Museum (Contract 2nding 30 June 2021} 44 -
. Website hosting services (Contract ending 23 December 2021) 2 -
* Artfundi - Wehsite hosting services (Contract ending 31 March 2022) 29 -
- NCC - Internat network system (Cortract encing 30 Movember 2021) 29 -
8,838 1,791
Commitments between 2-5 years
* Supply of 5. H.C kins (Contract ending on 20 November 20217) - =4
* Genaerator maintenance services (Contract ending on 21 September 2021) - 15
- Fhotoeopying conract (Contract ending on 30 April 2024) 1 1148
* Gardening senices at Freshford (Contract ending 21 March 2022} - 160
* Alarm systems {Cohtract ending 21 July 2024 ) - 234
* Azsessrnent services for HWAC system - 68
. Museum Vehicle service (Conbract ending 29 February 2022) - 19
- Freshiord Howse Museurn [(Contract ending 30 June 2021) - 7
. Fleet management (Contract ending 31 Septembear 2022) 92 156
* Electrical services all Museums {Contract ending 31 December 2023) 180 -
- National Security - Armed Response (Contract endirg 31 July 2024} KT -
- Slallion - Securily services (Conliac, services 31 January 2024) 1,662 -
. Website hosting services (Contract ending 17 November 2024} 7 -
* Morar Inc. - Intermal Audit services (Contract ending 31 Decembear 2024) 589 -
2,908 022
Total operational commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for {Commitments withir 1 year) 5828 1,791
Commitmeants belween 2-5 years 2808 222
12,736 2,713
Total commitments
Total commitments
Authorised operational expenditure 12,736 2,713
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand thaousand 2021 2020

28. Related parties

Felationships

Azzociates Department of Pukliz Woarks

Contralling entity Department of Sports, Arts and Sulture

Land and builcings are made availabla to tha Mational Museaum ir terms of zaction 9 of the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 {Act
Mo. 119 of 1598), in order for the Matcna! Museum to perdorm its functions.

Mo lease agreement esizts between the Mational Museum and the Department of Public Works. The Mational Museum does
not pay rent for the use of the buildings.

Mo amounts are due ko the related parties.

The Mational Museum has been housed in buildings which are the property of the Department of Public Works. The use of the
buildings is provided free of charge and recognised at the estimated fair value. Mo lease agreement exists

between the Natioral Museum and the Department of Arts and Culturs.

Related party balancas

Unclaimad grants - ]
Unspent conditional grants and receipts B0 992 Eh, 097
Related party transactions

Revenue

Annual subsidy 60,892 47,552
Subsidy received: Operating leases 2281 2112
Faymenis on behalf of the Mussum 2812 2.TRD
Free use of building 3.7 3.545

Amaunts outstanding in relation to the grants included in the balance sheet:

Unspent grant included in the balance sheet in relaticn to GRAP 103 45,300 47,001
Imzlementation grant.

Tha conditions of the grant was such that the grants he used for the purposes of the subsidy:

Anmnual Subsidy

The purpose of this grant is for the expanzes incurred by the Mstional Museurmn on a daily basis and'or are operational
SXperses.

Operating Leases

The purpase of this grant is for the payment of the buildings ang parking bays leased by the National Musaum,
Municipal Services

The purpose of this grant is for the payment of municipality services incurred by the Naticnal Museum.

Free use of hulldings

There were no amounts received by the National Museum in relation to free use of buildings; t is disclosed as this is for
sarvices in Kind for aliowing the MNaticnal Museum to use the Department of Public Warks buildings for free

Remuneration of councilors
Refer to note 23 for details of councillars remuneration.

Key management information
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand thousand

2021

2020

28. Related parties {continued)

Class Description

Executive managemen; Chief Executive Officar
Executive managemen: Chief Financial Officer
Executive management Deputy Director (Acting)

Remuneration of management
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand thousand 2021 2020
23, Councillars’ emolumeants
Remuneration to council members
2021

Sitting Other Total

allowances allowances
Adv J Leshabane {Chairperson of Council] -appointed 1 September 2018 18 75 93
Or E Mahatlane 24 46 T0
Or L Munsamy 27 a5 B2
Mrs G. Ritchis 12 20 J2
Me M De Roche-Holmes 17 20 T
Mr M Moge 14 35 a3
fir G Fortuna 2] 13 27
Dr D Marmis 3 - !
Ms L Costzee - Minute taker 17 - F
145 244 389

2020

Sitting Other Total

allowances allowances
Ady J Leshabane {Chairperson of Council) -appointad 1 September 2018 23 19 42
Cr E Mahatlane 26 16 42
DOr L Munsany 16 11 7
Wrs . Ritzhig i) g 16
iz M De Roche-Holmes 2] 12 21
Mr M Moge 10 12 2
Wr C Fortuna 11 12 23
Dr O oz 4 Z 4
Mz L Costeees - Minute taker ] - &
115 a0 205
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand thousand 2021 2020

30. Priar period errors

Presented below are those items contained in the staterment of finanaial pasition, statement of financial perdormance and cash
flaw statemant that have bean affected by priot-year adjustments

The prior pered errors for the financial year have been listed below and the adjustments will be retrospectively.
The errars on property, piant and equipment relate to assets identitied on the asset register which were not included at the
correct values, this meant that these need to be adjusted in arder to present the correct camying value of property, plant and

egquipment. Other errors inc udad incarmect depreciation values resulting from formula and formant errors,

[he errar presented on cash and cash equivalenis was 3s a result of 3 difference in the bank confirmation of the previous
financial vear as well a5 the cash book batances on the system. This has besn conmected bo ensure the correct bank balance.

During the current financial year, managemsnt were made aware that the user charges for gervices in kine had been approved
by Mational Treasury. The compantive figures were then adjusted to raflect an amount of the free use of suildings wsing the
apporoved charges.

The correction of the error(g) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position

Increase in depreciation: Library Books - B
Increasa in cost prica: Equipmant _ 4
Decrease in accumulated depreciation: Fixtures - 2
Increase in accumulated depreciation: Yehicles - (58]
Increase in accumulated depreciation: Liorary books - (6]
Increasa in accumulated depreciation: Fumiturs - [
Increase in cost price: Comauters - 508
Increase in accumulated depreciation: Comouters - (328}
Decrease in accumulated depreciation: Ecuipment - 7
Increase in cash and cash equivalents: Call Account - 4,268
Increase in reserves: Accumulated fund - (3.415)
Increase in interest received - (1.585)
Decrease in the free use of buildings income - 26261
Dacreass in the free uee of buildings expanse - {26,951}
Increase in bad deots - g
Decrease in rece vables from non-exchange transactions - 4]

31. Risk management
Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the sconomic antity will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial
liahilitias that are eeitled by dalivaring cash or ancther finangial asset.

The foliowing reflects the Mussurn's 2xposcue to liguidity visk from financial liabilities:

Commitmants 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trace and other payables 22 G40 3 863
Firance lease obligations 118 152
Provisions 1724
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figuras in Rand thaussnd 2021 2020

31. Risk management {continued)
Credit risk

Credi: rizk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash eguivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. |he entity
anly deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing anc limits exposars t any oneg counter-party.

Trace receivables comprise a widespread customer baze. Managemeant evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
angoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is ro independent rating, risk
control assesses the credil qualily of the cuslomer, laking inle account its linancial posilion. pasl experence and olhe fackors.
Incividual risk limits are set sased on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board, The utilisation of
credit limite iz regularly montored. Sales to retail customers are seftlec in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantes
insurarce is ourchased when deemed approprate.

Financial azzets axposed to cradit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2021 2020
Recavables from exchange transachions 1,853 ik}
Receivables from har-exchangs transactions - a
Cash and cash equivalents 130,088 106,364
Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Matonal Museums revenue earnad aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in markat interast
rates.

32. Financial instruments disclosure
Cateqories of financial instruments
2021

Financial assets

At fair value Tota
Fecsivablas from exchange transactions 1,853 1.953
Cash and cash equivalents 130,088 130,088
132,044 132,044
Financial liabilities
At fair value Tota
Trade and other payables froem exchange transactions 4 B40 £ 8340
Trade and cther payables frem non-exchangs transactions 18,000 18,000
Frovisions 1,724 1,724
Finance lease obligations 1189 119
24 6B3 24,683
2020
Financial assets
Al fair value Tota
Rocoivables from exchange transactions 703 03
Fecsivables from non-exchange tranzactions 9 o
Cash and cash equivalents 106 654 106 884
107 596 107,596

Financial liabilities
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32. Financial instruments disclosure {continued)

At fair value Total
Trade and other pavables from exchange transactions 384 2,884
Finance lease ctligations 1532 132
4,016 4,018

33. Going concarn

The Annual financial statements have beeh prapared on the basis of accounting palizies applicadie to a goirg concem.

The basis presumes that the National Museum wil continue to receive grants fram National Government as well as continue to
receive rental income and charge for services provided by the scigntist and for quests visiting the Mational Muscum. The
proceeds are presumed to be available to finance future operaticns and that the realization of sssets and settlermment of
liabilities, contingsnt aoligations and commitments will occur in the crdinary course of business,

34. Events after the reporting date

Re-organisation of Departments

Re-organisation of the Botany and Hemppetology Departments fo create the Department of Animal and Plant Systematic,
effactive 01 April 2021.

35. Irragular expanditure

DOpening balance as oreviously reported 13 13
Opening balance as restated 13 13
Add: Iregular Expenditure - cumrent 10 -
Closing balance 23 13

Incidente/cases identifiad in the current yaar include those listed balow:

Digsciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
Threa written quotationz not invited Matter referred to HRE
Splitting of orders Matter referred to HR

36. Free use of buildings

Free use of building 3994 3771

The National Muscum is housed in Department of Public Works Buildings. The use of these buildings iz provided free of charge
and the use is recognised at the estimated fair value. This has been the arrangement since inception of the National Museum,
ne agreements exist betwesn the Department of Public Warks, the Department of Sports, Arts and Culture and the Mational
Muzaum.

The Mational Museum has tha following buildings:

ERF 2124 Partion 0 of Bloemfontein - 26 Aliwal Strest

ERF 3278 Portion 0 of Bleemfontein - 16 Harry Smith Strest

ERF 3301 Portion O of Bloemfontein - 16 Harry Smith Strest

SOF - Florisbad Mational Museum - Soutpan - 43km NW of Bloermfontein

GOF - Museum (Eerste Raadsaal) - 85 St Georges Street

Erven 25235 Portion 0 of Bloemfaniain - 95 St Georges Street

Pricr period error
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36. Free use of buildings {continued)

Curing the current financial year, managemsnt were made aware that the user charges for services in kine had bean approved
by Mational Treasury. The comparitive figures were then adjusted to reflect an amourt of the free use of ouilzings using the
apporoved charges.

37. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance

Reconcilistion of budgel surplusidehizit with the surplusideficit in the staement of inanc al perfornance:

Met (deficit) surplas oer the statement of financial performance (13,473 13.468
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Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

38. Deviation from supply chain management requlations

Paragraph 1201 }d){i) of Government gazette Mo, 27628 izsued an 30 May 2005 sfates that a supply chain management policy
must provide for the precurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding orocess.

Paragraph 36(2) of the same gazette statee that the accounting officer may dispense with the official orecurament process in
certain circumstancas, proviced that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting ot the
Council and includes a note to the financial staterments.

Deviations

Reason for deviation Date Supplier Amount {R)

Sale orovider - Zoom software licence 12052020 Techsonic 3,344
Sole orovider - SAWS weather data 15/06/2020 SA Weather Services 2,445
Sole provider - Zoom licence 12 months  15/05/2020 Techsonic 3,244
Sale orovider - WC Fossil Park Trip 03052020 [Ziko Musaum SA 4,360
Sale orovider - Mindex software renewal  18/05/2020 Winde:x 15,2459
Sole orovider - Pastel software renewal  18/052020 Sage Pastel 20,720
Sole orovider - Paleo Tools 2000512020 Fedex 7010
Sale orovider - Consultation on WP 20/05/2020 Sage YIP 1,085
Payroll

Sole orovider - taxes and import duties 01072020 Fedex 7.810
Sole orovider - Mid year tax returns 31/08/2020 Sage YIP 4630
Sole provider - Bulk updates to At 16/08/2020 Legas Flow 1.200
collection

Sole orovider - Uagrading digital 160852020 Logos Flow 2400
database

Sole orovider - Distribution of Gulna J0V0BI2020 54 Post Office 12.304
Sale provider - Zoom licence 12 months  30/08/2020 Tachsonic 2181
Sale orovider - Loom licence 12 manths  10/08:2020 [echsonic 2,161
Sule miovider - Framing of Artworks 23/08/2020 Esre Claasan 2500
Sole orovider - Antan Paar DA, 13102020 Anton Paar 66,154
Sale provider - Caseware renewal 28M10/2020 Caseware Africa 89173
Sale orovider - Maotor far Accutorm-100 28102020 Advance Laboratory Solutions 11,145
Sole orovider - Motor for Acoutore-100 281072020 Advance Laboratory Solutions 14,123
Sole orovider - Ungrading VIP software 281102020 Sage VIP 70553
Sole provider - Cofl for poles and boards 061202020 Cohen Acvanced Electrical 2565
Presidential Stimulus Programme 101272020 WVANSA, 1,430,016
Presidential Stimulus Proegramme 101252020 CCIFSA 114,0C0
LP Genetic Laboratony wiorlk 1122020 LIniversity of Pretoria 14.548
Sole provider - Stipends for intarns 21252020 WANSA 279,300
Sale orovider - Servicing of Accutom-100 25/01/2021 Advancec Laboratory Solutions 12,409
Sole orovider - Service Tissue processor 25/02/2021 Beytronics Medical 9,304
Sole orovider - Administration fee 1210172021 CCIFSA 28,500
Sole provider - Struers Equipment 10022021 Advanceo Laboratory Solutions 29,456
Sale orovider - Administration fee 03022021 COIFSA 28 500
Eernewal of SAICA Memberzshio 030202021 SAICA 8,280
Rerewal of SAICA Membershio 030272021 SAICA T.344
Sole orovider - Intern stipends and Dgi02f2021 WANSA 385,504
Admin fee

Sole orovider - VIF Annual licence fee 30/032021 Sage VIP 67628
Soale orovider - Stipend for Interns 303202 VANSA 302,100
Sole orovider - Stipends for interms 1032021 YANSA 28,500
Sale orovider - Administration fea 31/03:2021 CCIFSA 2B.5C0
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